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Abbreviations

LE:

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the following meanings ~ MAFRA - BXESBEHIEI - TIHIBBAEFATERE

unless otherwise specified:

"Board”
E3-0

“Company”
NN

"“Directors”

(%]

“Group”
[AEE ]

“Listing Rules”
[ #RAl]

“PRC”

[

“SFO”
[ &7 M B 154 ]

“Stock Exchange”

[ B PfT)

“HK$" and “HK cents”

&R

“RMB"
[ARE]
Uss”
E
wog

[%]

* E(E5)

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

the Board of Directors of the Company

ARBZEEE

Winshine Science Company Limited

BRNBERAD

the directors of the Company

ARBZES

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARBREWMBERT]

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B PrE 7 LR A

the People's Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluding Hong Kong,

Macau and Taiwan

FEARANE @ AREME - TRESE  BFILEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
&7 REIR IRBI(ERIABIEST1E)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEMARSMARAT

Hong Kong dollars and cents

BT KA

Renminbi

AR

United States dollars
=TT

per cent.

Eleg=d
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Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear fellow shareholders:

The Board herein presents the annual report for 2024 and the audited annual
financial statements for the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2024.

2024 has proved to be a tumultuous and transformative period for the global
economy. The intertwining effects of geopolitical conflicts, shifting policy
decisions, and economic indicators have created a complex landscape. Also,
inflation has been a persistent challenge across global economies in the first
half of 2024. In the USA, inflation remained stubbornly high, driven by strong
wage growth, supply chain bottlenecks, and elevated energy prices. These
inflationary pressures eroded purchasing power and strained household
budgets, compelling policymakers to act assertively. In response to persistent
inflationary pressures, central banks worldwide have continued to adjust
interest rates. These measures, while necessary, have tightened financial

conditions, tempering economic growth.

In additional, the recent U.S. tariff increases have created a challenging
marketing environment for our Group that heavily depend on U.S. sales,
impacting pricing, competitiveness, consumer behavior, and long-term strategic

planning.

PROSPECTS

The year of 2025 is likely to be characterized by a series of economic
headwinds. One significant challenge is the ongoing geopolitical instability
in various parts of the world. Conflicts, trade wars, and shifting alliances
continue to create uncertainty, impacting global supply chains and trade
flows. Additionally, inflationary pressures persist as central banks grapple with
balancing interest rates to manage economic growth without stifling recovery
efforts. We anticipate that 2025 is a challenging year and the Toys Division
experienced tremendous pressure on product margins and turnover in
FY2025.

Looking forward, we are cautiously optimistic as our Toys Division and
Agricultural Products Division continue to improve their performances and
the Board shall continue to explore more new business opportunities on a
much lower management cost and look for more new potential customers to

increase the market shares.
Jiang Qinghui

Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The main divisions of the Group based on the principal activities of the
Group include the manufacturing for sale of toys (the “Toys Division™) and
the plantation and sales of agricultural products (the “Agricultural Products

Division”).

For FY2024, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$515.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately |.4% as compared to the revenue
of approximately HK$523.3 million for the year ended 3| December 2023
("FY2023").

The decrease of revenue was mainly due to the worse performance of our
Toys Division of approximately HK$8.8 million. Gross profit for the year
amounted to approximately HK$13.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 64.8% as compared with that of approximately HK$39.2 million

in FY2023 as a result of the worse performance of the Toys Division.

For FY2024, the net loss of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$73.8 million as compared with the net loss approximately HK$29.4
million in FY2023. The increase in loss for FY2024 was mainly attributable
to (i) the reduction of gross profit by approximately HK$25 million due to
the competitive market conditions during FY2024 in toys division and (ii)
the increase in the impairment loss on property, plant and equipment by

approximately HK$ 10 million.

The following will discuss the detailed performance of each division of the

Group.

Toys Division

For FY2024, revenue of the Toys Division decreased by approximately |.7%
to HK$514 million. The gross profit decreased to approximately HK$13.8
million as compare to HK$39.2 million in FY2023. The decrease in both
revenue and gross profit of the Toys Division were mainly due to the
decrease in purchase orders from the largest customer headquartered in the
United States of America (the "USA”). The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly due to elevated discounts offered to its customers in response to
a volatile and challenging consumer environment. The Toys Division recorded
a reported segment loss before taxation of approximately HK$44.5 million in

FY2024, as compared to the turnout of the reportable segment profit before
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

taxation of approximately HK$7.26 million in FY2023. Such reported segment
loss before taxation of the Toys Division were mainly due to decrease in

gross profit attributable to the Toys Division.

Agricultural Products Division

For FY2024, revenue of agricultural products was improved and generated
in approximately HK$1.9 million as compared with that of approximately
HK$0.4 million in FY2023. The Agricultural Products Division recorded a
reported segment loss before taxation of approximately HK$3.5 million,
which was mainly due to the plantation and sales of agricultural products in
Japan were under the development stage in FY2024. The management plans

to extend the plantation and sales of agricultural products in Japan.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

At the end of FY 2024, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$220.3 million (2023: HK$185.2 million) comprising cash and cash
equivalents (excluding pledged bank deposits) of approximately HK$55.3
million (2023: HK$ 1 19.3 million).

The capital deficiencies attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$139 million as at 31 December 2024, as compared to the
capital deficiencies attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$80.1 million as at 31 December 2023, mainly as a result of the significant
operating loss incurred by the Group during the year. The Group financed its
operations through a combination of debt financing and shareholder’s equity.
The Group’s gearing ratio was determined as its net debt divided by total
equity plus net debt where net debt included borrowings, convertible bond,
trade and bills payables and other payables and accruals less pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The gearing ratio of the Group as at
31 December 2024 was approximately 136.7% (2023: 131%).

Despite the loss incurred by the Group and the net liabilities status at the end
of FY2024, the Group has proposed to issue the shares under the general
mandate on 28 January 2025. Therefore, the Group has sufficient cash to

support the Group's ongoing business operations.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The management team is more closely aligned with our shareholders as
can be seen from the actions taken so far to redirect the Company toward
a better internal control, resolution of the legacy issues and a substantial

reduction of the management cost

DETAILS OF AUDIT QUALIFICATION AND RESPONSE FROM
THE COMPANY

Details of the Audit Qualification

The Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
HK$220,257,000 and HK$ 140,487,000, respectively during the year ended 31
December 2024, and the Group's bank balances amounted to approximately
HK$55,258,000, in contrast to its borrowings approximately HK$2 17,089,000,
which are repayable within the next twelve months. These conditions indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. In this regard, the auditor of
the Company issued a disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated financial
statement of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2024 on material
uncertainty on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern (the “Audit

Qualification”).

Actual or potential impact of the Audit Qualification on the Group’s

financial position

The Audit Qualification does not itself show any actual impact on the Group’s
financial position. As set out in note to the consolidated financial statements,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for biological assets which are measured at their fair value
less costs to sell and, certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period. Should the Group fail to achieve
the intended effects resulting from the plans and measures as mentioned in
note to the consolidated financial statements, it might not be able to operate
as a going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying amounts of the Group'’s assets, provide for any further liabilities
that may arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects of these

adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Management’s position

In view of the Audit Qualification, the management of the Group (including
the Directors) (the "Management”) has given consideration related to the
Group's current liquidity, performance and available sources of financing
in assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Taking into
account the successful and continued implementation of various measures
such as including the successful completion of issuance of shares under the
general mandate, successful negotiations with the lenders regarding the
extension of the maturity of all outstanding borrowings, the Management
believes that the Group should have sufficient working capital for a period
of not less than 12 months from 31 December 2024, and hence it was
appropriate to prepare the Group's consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.

There was no disagreement between the Management and the Auditors
regarding the Audit Qualification, considering that the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends on the outcome of the measures under management'’s assumptions,
which are subject to certain uncertainties, including the Group's ability to
generate operating cash flows and to obtain additional sources of financing.
While the Company is of the view that it has already provided all available
information and documents to demonstrate that the Group will have sufficient
working capital for the |2 months after the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Company also acknowledges the uncertainties raised by the Auditors
specified above in that such uncertainties cannot be satisfied with the mere

provision of documents and information.

Audit committee’s views towards the Audit Qualification

The audit committee reviewed and agreed with the management'’s position
concerning the action plan of the Group to address the Audit Qualification
disclosed above. The Audit Committee has also discussed with the
Management and the Auditors to understand the reason for the Disclaimer
and the views of the Board and the Auditors. The Audit committee concurs
with the Management’s position and views with respect to the Disclaimer
and the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, the actions to be

implemented by the management of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Proposed plans to address the Audit Qualification

The Board is satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future, after
taking into consideration of the point (i) to (iv) as set out in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements. The management recognises that further
equity funding is required to resolve auditor’s concern on the going concern
issue. As such, the management will commence to contact potential investors
with a view to raise equity funds by way of placing of new shares of the
Company under a general mandate and/or rights issues. The management will
vigorously consider any feasible plan from the potential underwriter and will
proceed as and when appropriate and practicable. The management intends
to conduct the equity fund activities and successfully raise fund for the Group
by the end of 2025.

In view of the foregoing, and assuming all of the Company's plans or
actions can be completed as planned, including the obtaining of alternative
financing, and no new circumstances and conditions have occurred, subject
to satisfactory completion of review of the Management'’s assessment of the
Group’s going concern and the Auditors being satisfied with the documents,
information and evidence to be provided by the Company going forward, the
Directors are of the view that the Group will have sufficient working capital
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months from the year ended of 31 December 2024 and the Company is
hopeful that the Disclaimer may be removed in connection with the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ending 31
December 2025.

EEEFNWE DN

REOEEFZRAEEZLER

EEEEREAMBBRME2MEFOE(HE
ENAREE K EE R AT S EIRABNE A R ARK 2 8
BEME BEERREFTEEZRAES UBRZH
BRFTRAY) 2 1SR L RE - Bt - ERERRREE
BEREE - NFAREARRFBN (RIE—RIXE
ET) R/ IR T AEERAES - BEEHERE
BEEBHEBAREZEMAIITHER  XREE RA
TERATEREAEEILE EREHETRARE
BBUN T _HAFFRARETEDTHEE o

ERERER  BRARBNAASRTEHHIAR
FTEIER - BRESERRBE - ARHREFFBER
MG - EEERBRARE R B LE R NTERT
HEITEVEZ B TEROA MR BRI E A R BRI
XM BRREBE  EFAR  FEEBERRS
ZEBASUBTASE S _NF+A=+—H1t
FEEFARRT —@EANBZHBEEE  LAEHE
ECTCRFT A=+ BIEFEZAERGA N
BREE - ARRAERTERE R ATRMER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
R NEER

11



12

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HEBRERERS

OVERVIEW

The Group is delighted to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") report (the “ESG Report”), prepared by Winshine Science Company
Limited (the “"Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) to summaries the Group’s ESG key issues, initiatives, and the
sustainability performance of our principal business for the period from |
January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (*2024" or “2024 Reporting Period”).
The ESG Report is prepared in response to stakeholders' expectations and

concerns about the sustainable development of the Group.

This report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Code (the
“ESG Reporting Code”) outlined in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules and
Guidance Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (“HKEX") and follows the principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency, and covers the operations and activities
of the subsidiaries in Zhongshan City (“Zhongshan™), Guangdong Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong. This ESG Report
was compiled in compliance with the “mandatory disclosure requirements”

and the “comply or explain” provisions in the ESG Reporting Code.

This ESG Report has been reviewed and approved by the board of the
Company (the “Board”), both reviews and reports the core business

operations and activities of the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ESG OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES

We operate in strict compliance with the principles of minimizing risks
associated with the listed ESG subject areas and aspects mentioned in the
ESG Reporting Code, including but not limited to complying with legal and
regulatory requirements, adherence to high ethical standards, and eliminating

and minimizing negative impacts on the environment.

Nonetheless, we also cherish those that are part of the family within the
Group by further complying with the listed ESG subject areas and aspects
mentioned in the ESG Reporting Code, including but not limited to alleviating
and improving the wellbeing of our employees, creating value to the
stakeholders, and supporting the growth and inclusion of the community to

the operations of the Group.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is responsible for the sustainable development of the Group and
guides its fulfillment of its corporate social responsibilities. The Board believes
that focusing on resources management and occupational safety and health
will help the Group achieve its established vision and mission. The Board
have faith that prioritizing ESG management can improve our corporate
image, mitigate ESG risks and strengthen the Group's capability to comply
with relevant laws and regulations. These efforts can further improve the
competitiveness of the Group and promote the sustainable development of

the Group's business.

The Group's ESG philosophy is to create long-term value for its stakeholders
in alignment with the strategic development and sustainability of its business.
The Group is committed to maintaining a rigorous corporate governance
framework to promote and safeguard the interests of shareholders and other
stakeholders, thereby upholding the Group'’s credibility and reputation. The
Group will continue to seek ways to develop our business in a more efficient
and environmentally friendly manner and remains steadfast in our mission to

build an inclusive and sustainable society.
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RE #HEBRERERS

Throughout the 2024 Reporting Period, the Group maintained the same
ESG management structure and process as the last reporting period (from
| January 2023 to 3| December 2023, “2023" or “2023 Reporting Period”).
The Group fully understands that ESG policies and practices may change over
time to reflect the changes in business operations, structures, technologies,
laws and regulations, and the environment. The Group thus continues to
invest substantial resources to monitor ESG issues, policies and practices and
performance on an ongoing basis. Our ESG strategies, management policy
and approach are based on compliance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements, the principle of sustainability and opinions from our key
stakeholders. The Group’s visions and goals, and the ESG management policy

and approach can be summarized in the following statements:

The Group is committed to successfully undertaking its business, while
providing strong returns to our investors and supporters, mitigating
risks associated with our operations, ensuring a healthy and safe
working environment to our employees, and contributing to sustainable

developments for the local communities and the Group.

2. The Board from time to time approves and updates strategies and
policies which are incorporated with the related environmental and
social issues stated in the ESG Reporting Code. The Board has assigned
each department to implement ESG policies in accordance with the
respective operations and activities. Through their normal and routine
channels, all departments report directly to the Group’s chief executive
officer ("CEQ"), who has the overall responsibility to ensure that
the Board's approved strategies and policies are implemented. The
departments are responsible to assist and advise the Board in managing
ESG matters such as identifying ESG risks and opportunities, managing
ESG issues as well as collecting data regularly for the review of the ESG
performance. The working group reports to the Board on an annual

basis.

3. It is the duty of the Group’s CEO and his operation managers
(collectively, the “Management Team”) to examine and address all the
environmental and social issues detailed in the aspects and areas in the

ESG Reporting Code.

4. To promote the comprehensive risk management within the Group, the
Group has made a basic assessment of relevant ESG risks through the
Board's extensive understanding of the business and the communication
with different stakeholders, and incorporated the relevant risks into the

risk management and internal control system.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group has compiled the ESG Report in accordance with the following

reporting principles:

Materiality : The Group has identified the materiality of ESG topics
by stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment.
The details are explained in the section of “Stakeholders
Communication and Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative : Under feasible situation, the Group recorded, calculated

and disclosed quantitative information and conducted
comparisons with past performance, if applicable. Details
of the calculation standards/methods for the reporting
of emissions/energy consumptions are disclosed together
with the data tables in relevant sections.
Consistency : The methodology adopted for disclosing key environmental
and social performance indicators is consistent with that

of the previous reporting period.

REPORTING BOUNDARY

For the purpose of this report, the Group herein will review its core business
activities and operations in terms of their environmental and social objectives,

policies and practices, and their impacts and performances.

The reporting scope of the ESG Report focuses on the primary business,
manufacturing and trading of toys. Only Zhongshan division is covered since
the Zhongshan factory is financially significant and operationally important to
the Group, constituting the centre for administration and policymaking. As
such Zhongshan division is covered in both environmental section and social
section in the ESG Report. The office-based operation in Hong Kong only
has a small workforce working in the finance and administration department,
its environmental implication is immaterial and as such is covered only in the

social section in the ESG Report.

R HEgRERKRSE

HERA

AEERBATHRERIGHRE  HERER/RE:

B2 AEECEBRHESEREEMNNMG -
BERE HahBERBENEEM - &
%E@@ﬁ%%/mﬂEEEﬂm f e

E1t: ATMERT  AEBERE  SAELREE
BLEH  YEEANERTRBERR
EITHR - BRAME PR RE R

S FENFE - ERBIBRNER
BHI—HE -

—HE: WERBRRIESEMIEREARANT
EER RS MM A -

REHE

ﬁ$ﬁiﬁ; AEBEBRASEROEBHEBNE

BREAREEIMGER BELER  URHEF

%&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ°

BRIE - HEREAMENREHET TN EEER -

BIMASLERES - HRPIUBEHAEBEAFEX

WP REZNEEXE  BITHMRRFT O - Bt
RBEEPUDEL - Bt - B - L2 REAMEHNIR

FEHAUGSHIRET LS H - BEREERE
SEEBRIBRITEBIITE  AHBENTEY
TEA  AUERBS  HEREERENLGEEH
A

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
R NEER

15



16

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HEBRERERS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group recognises the importance of understanding stakeholders' needs
and expectations. Stakeholders’ opinions can help the Group identify and

prioritise material aspects, whereby many communication channels have been

FOESHENEEZMTME

AEBPAOBERBREOEFTRKINAZNERN - #50)
ENBRAUEDARERR MRBEREEHFEKRT
H MAREERIZEEBRETHETARNE

set up to regularly engage different stakeholders.

Communication Channels

B o

Major Stakeholders

BERE TERFHE

Meetings Investors, Customers, Regulators, Suppliers, Directors, Management, and Employees
7 REE  BF  EEHRE  HER EF  EEEREE

Reports Investors, Customers, and Regulators

wmE REE  FPREEHRE

Announcements (circulars, memos, emails)
NECRK - B - EFEH)
Company's website

/NIRRT

Phone calls

=

E
Surveys

S

Site visits

BHARE

Seminars

e

Company Events (annual dinners, volunteer service)

ARBESHAFHRE - EITRK)

Investors, Suppliers, and Employees

REE  HEBRIER

Investors, Customers, Organisation, Regulators, Suppliers, Employees, and the Public
REE TP - HE - REWRE  fUER  EERAR
Customers and Suppliers

BEP RHER

Customers and Employees

EFLER

Customers, Regulators, and Suppliers

BF - BEERBRMHERS

Industrial Organisation

THRAR

Directors, Management, and Employees

%  EREREAR

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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BEREFNENEREBERBHREF[ENER » K
SEDHER TIRE HEREANEARBERE
- RTRAIR

Through regular communications with stakeholders and reviewing of the

information collected, the Group has identified the following ESG material

areas and aspects indicated in the following table:

%9

2%

SHE (HIEHE

SMER
External Assessment (Impact on Stakeholders)

TEE

Immaterial

Internal Assessment (Impact on Business)

mERFHE (MRB )

Subject Areas E E#ilE Subject Aspects FEEM@
Environmental IR1&E Al. Emissions AlLBERH)
A2. Use of Resources A2 &R
A3. Environment and Natural Resources ~ A3IRE R BAER
A4. Climate Change A4 RIRE L
Social &
Employment and Labour Practices BI. Employment BIE(H
EEREIER B2. Health and Safety BLIERMZ 2
B3. Development and Training B3.EE B & IEH)
B4. Labour Standards B4.45 T8I
Operating Practices & Z &l BS. Supply Chain Management BS.fLrESEE I
B6. Product Responsibility RBeEMET
B7. Anti-corruption B7.RE)S
Community #& B8. Community Investment BeitRITE

The table below summarizes the most important ESG issues expressed by

different stakeholders.

afRE -

TEBETRFNERENZREZNRE - HE8 R
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Stakeholder Categories 1517 & ¥ 5l Most Material Issues REEEREE
Employee 1€ & . Labour Standards . BTHR|

. Corporate Governance and Risk Management J REE R HEE R E IR
Customer BF . Product Quality . mEE

. Occupational Health and Safety 0 BERREMZE
Supplier ftFER C Labour Practices U L5 T8 DI

. Procurement and Supply Chain Management 0 R e ER

The above ESG material areas and aspects have continued to be strictly

managed and monitored through the Group's established management RIRIR
structure, process, policies and guidelines as described in this ESG Report. " ORE
THE GROUP’S ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL AREAS AND AEENIR

ASPECTS AND THEIR PERFORMANCE

A.

FEE  HEREAE

CHERERAWER

‘Eﬁ(ﬁﬁ&?a%\i’%

’|$$ﬁﬁ&@ﬁ%%£§§§iﬁ
MAEEERYNEEL
ERARE R BT o

RERHEHEREREARERE

ENVIRONMENTAL AREAS AND ASPECTS A. REBHEERER
1.1 Environmental Areas Overview 1.1 RIBEHEME

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s

environmental performance, formulating environmental initiatives,

and minimizing environmental risks. The Group has complied

with all environmental laws and regulations and prohibited to the

utmost of all relevant illegal and violating activities and ensuring

compliance with all relevant national and local environmental

laws and regulations including but not limited to:

. Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (FF#E A R 270

BIRBIREX);

. Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment (4

= AR AEMBIIRS

EEEEEBASENRREN - BIE
REFERERERBASERE - A&
EEETHAERREAEMNER  TEHAK
RERILMEMREBRZEERERED - I
WRFAMABBEBIR R 7 IRRERE
B BEETRER

o (PEARANMBEIRBREL):

« (PEARANMBERRZEFEE):

ZHEER),

Water Pollution and Control Law of the PRC (FEAR
HABKBRBIRE);

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Atmospheric Pollution and Control Law of the PRC (H %
ARKMBEARRFEIEE),

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Pollution from Environmental Noise ({FZE A R LRI IR
RRE S 2MEE); and

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste (FF % A R F1E
| BBEE Y5 A IRIRHIAE).

Procedure

@)

(i

(iii)

The Management Team shall identify and evaluate the
environmental aspects for all work activities that are most

likely to give rise to significant environmental impacts.

The Management Team shall collaborate both internally
and externally with relevant parties to classify all relevant

work activities into the following categories:

. Normal: Routine activities or tasks performed as

part of standard processes;

. Unusual: Non-routine tasks that arise under

unexpected circumstances; and

. Emergency: Events that have a significant impact on
the environment and require immediate action such

as major leakages and spillages, fires, etc.
When identifying the environmental aspects, all activities
likely to cause environmental impact or improve general
sustainability are considered including but not limited to
the following:

. Gas emissions;

. Water discharge;

(i

(i)

(REARKMBARRISRIEE):

(hEARAMBIRERE)S AR
) R

(PEARKMBEEENSRRE
BiaE)

ERERERATE TIEEE AT
HRAAEHRITENE AT ENIR
BEME °

TR I e B E (AR B T E T A ER K
SNEBEIE - AP B TIEE S
DRI ER

. EE fEARERRE N — 8
SEROBREDRT

. BE EEIMER THRIERIE
BHIE: &
. B2LZHRBEAEEATZEYS

2 ARBITEN RS - fin
BRRRMEL - A5 -

REBRAEAES - A ARYE

RESGERRAKEENESI9E

A BREARR

o BERBER

< HRKG
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. Waste disposal;
. Land contamination;

. Sustainability and the efficient use of raw materials,

energy, water and other natural resources;

. Other local environmental issues; and
. National and local laws and regulations.

(iv) At least once every year, the Management Team shall
review the environmental aspects. They shall also update
these aspects regularly in accordance with new laws and
regulations, changes in organizational work activities and
processes, production systems or equipment, and based
on insights gained from incidents, accidents, organizational

or external requirements.

(v)  For each environmental aspect, the Management Team
shall identify and assess the environmental impacts, and
the following shall be considered:

. Global warming;

. Water pollution;

. Air pollution;

. Waste generation;

. Land/soil contamination;

. Noise pollution; and

. Natural resources conservation.
20 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Environmental Aspects

The Group places great importance on mitigating environmental
threats and impacts arising directly or indirectly from its
business operations through vigilant assessment and monitoring.
By adhering to the ISO 14001 environmental management
system standard, the Group has established an environmental
management system and continuously advances its environmental
performance while collaborating with authorities to address
stricter national environmental legislation and management in the
manufacturing industry. Advocating for sustainable development,
the Group implements various measures to ensure full
compliance with regulations on emissions, wastewater, and solid
waste discharge, minimizing environmental impact, and promotes
awareness among employees of their roles in conserving energy

and natural resources.

During the 2024 Reporting Period, the Group was not
subject to any confirmed cases for breaching environmental
legislation in relation to emissions and waste discharge or other
environmental issues that could have an adverse impact on the

local environment.

R HEgRERKRSE

RREE

REBSEERRBHEKEEERELM
BREEANBRSEBENTE  WHLETSE
BT R BRI o BB SFISO 14001 3R3R
EERRIEE AEEEVTREEERE
RUTHRRERRANR  ANEERAE
15 DS ELE T BRIENBEIRREED
RER - REBIREBABESRR - KOE
BREBERT2ETE BN - BEKNE
BREZVHERAER  SAREHIR DY
RENFE  TReEEBIHESHOER
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&

Al EMISSIONS

()

Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Air Emissions

Carbon dioxide (“CO,") is the non-hazardous
greenhouse gas ("GHG") generated indirectly from

the use of electricity in our production.

The table below recorded and compared the

2024 Reporting Period and the 2023 Reporting

Al BERK
() BEREERBHNK
&k —&bik]) _ER
MOEERFERENEEESE

MESAERE(RERE)-

TRESHIE L =T —HFR
G T = FEREHPIL

Period's resultant indirect air pollutant emissions in M B R RIZ = RSB
Zhongshan:
Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEE
Items of emissions "o (") Unit 2024 2023 Changes
BBoRR"0 B —BomE —T-o=F )
CQ, indirect emission Nete @ Tonnes 5,283 5,129 +3.00%
k=t 3 ) A
Intensity (CO,/employee) Tonnes 3.26 3.47 -6.05%
T (=it S ET) 1
Note I:  Emission factors for calculations in this ESG MiEEl - BRS AEBAIH - AR

Report were made reference to the “How to
prepare an ESG Report-Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs (version
updated on 31 December 2024)” by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, unless
otherwise specified.

Note 2:  Emission factors for purchased electricity

sourced from R EEmE £ AR EREE
PR E.

To reduce indirect CO2 emissions, we have
formulated a sustainability strategy that will continue
to improve our energy saving practices, including
strictly controlling the electricity consumption of our
production facility. We target to lower the indirect
CO, emission per employee per year by [-2%
through the reduction of electricity consumption

per employee.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Furthermore, volatile organic compounds
("VOCs") release is another concern that captures
the Group's and the stakeholders’ attention.
Manufacturing toys inevitably uses paints and emits
VOCs in specific contexts. VOCs pose harm to
human, and children and infants are especially
susceptible. In view of this, the Group has deployed
water-based paints and environmentally friendly
paints with low VOCs content. Furthermore,
the Group introduced Phase Il VOCs emission
improvement. The project installed a VOCs
removal system with activated carbon absorber to
ensure VOCs released to the atmosphere, which a
registered testing agency verifies, is well within the
legal requirements. The system is also connected
to the Ministry of Environmental Protection of
the PRC for them to monitor emissions level.
Corrective actions will be timely made should any
abnormality occurs. Above all, the Group has also
maintained ventilation systems to effectively remove
or dilute indoor air pollutants to further enhance

the air quality in the premises.

Transportation is another emission area where
the Group also provides guidance to control air
pollution. The table below recorded and compared
the 2024 Reporting Period and the 2023 Reporting

Period’s resultant air pollutant emissions in

R HEgRERKRSE

N BRERUEBEKEED
([VOCsDHEMTT R AEE K&
BHOEBINSE - ZiEiA
mABREFEARR - WHE
TENER T 8 g HERVOCs o
VOCSHABEE  MRER
LRELE - BERL - KNEE
BEERAKAMRRIARVOCSE
EEABRBR Mo K&
B2 5| A ZHVOCsHE R &=
BH o ZIEEB R EREE M
M 2R HVOCS/EBR R - A
BRBERE AR EHVOCSH &
MR K ERENETE
koo ARG EEEPEIRE
IRAEEBIA BRI BEHOK T o A&
1 K B 1 IE 515 R BRER AL
18 - HREEHR - A5H
MELERBERSG  UBBE
BRI ERE RS RN E
—SRARMNEREE -

o

BRRs —EHFREE K&
B MR AR ST B Z= RIS R
TREBIHE T _MFR
HEER ZF = FREHRIL
HER R ZE RIS R BER

Zhongshan:
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE

Air Pollutants Unit 2024 2023 Changes
ERTRY By —EDmE —T=F 2
Nitrogen Oxides (“NO ") Gram 661,172 607,459 +8.84%
REem(NO ) 5

Sulphur Oxides (SO ") Gram 1,069 1,019 +4.91%
et (lso 1) 5

Particulate Matter (“PM") Gram 65,405 60,077 +8.87%
FOFRF(TPM]) 7

CO, direct emission Tonnes 173 165 +4.85%
ZRAETRE R A
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0)

(iii)

&

The Group has been reviewing and planning a
gradual reduction of fossil fuels in order to reduce
hazardous and non-hazardous gas emissions by
encourages employees to use car-pooling and public
transits. For the coming year, the Group targets
to reduce air pollutant emissions especially those

hazardous SO, NO,_and PM by 2-3%.

Water Pollution and Discharge

The Group does not hold any polluted water
discharge data concerning our Zhongshan factory.
All excess wastewater was required to be handled
by a third-party licensed wastewater treatment and

disposal specialist under PRC laws and regulations.

Meanwhile, water used for general living purposes
in employees’ dormitories would be discharged

through the public sewage system.

During the 2024 Reporting Period, no complaints

nor warning notices were received.

Noise and Light Pollution Emission

The Group does not generate any noise and light
pollution to the surrounding neighbors as our
business operations and activities are conducted
inside our factory and offices. Within our factory
operation, in certain parts of the operation, noise
is generated, but the extent is far below national
and industry standard limits. To be cautious and
to protect our workers, it is compulsory that
protective equipment is worn at all times during
production activities. During the 2024 Reporting
Period, no complaints nor warning notices were

received.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED

BMENEERLF
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Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes

The Group understands its business consumes
some quantity of natural materials. The Group has
established a waste reduction pathway with a long-
term perspective as a directional target. As such,
the Group carefully plans raw materials inputs and
end products output to minimize waste generation,

while ensuring reliable and stable quality.

The Group endeavours to reduce waste by
implementing different waste measures. One of
the measures to regulate waste disposal is the
adoption of 3R (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle) waste
management principle in operation. For instance,
the Group recycles and reuses plastics, wastepaper,
and cardboards, replaces plastics with biodegradable
alternatives, sets duplex-printing as default, carries
out an Enterprise Resources Planning system in the

office.

In addition, the Group collects and properly handles
all hazardous waste in the National Hazardous
Waste List. They are stored in a designated
container with covers in a designated area to avoid
leakage and misuse. All hazardous waste such as
organic solvent, compact fluorescent lamp, batteries
and exhausted cartridges and toners are collected
by the licensed contractors. Waste in Hong Kong
office was handled by the property management

and as a result, no relevant data was available.

TR
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-AZ=+-HLEE

Wastes Unit 2024 2023 Changes
BRY By —B-WE —T-o=fF -3
Non-hazardous waste, such as Tonnes

wastepaper, domestic waste 50 55 -9.09%
EEERY (PINRER - £BEEY)) W
Intensity of non-hazardous waste per  Tonnes/10,000 pieces

production volume 0.03 0.03 -
BHEEMBNEZERYEE W&, 10,0001F
Hazardous waste, such as wasted oil, ~ Tonnes

wasted solvent bottles 65 70 -7.14%
BEERY(PINERH - BERAE M

i)
Intensity of hazardous waste per Tonnes/10,000 pieces

production volume 0.04 0.04 -
BEEMBNBZBEREYEE 188,/ 10,0001
Compared to the 2023 Reporting Period, the slight BT - =—FHREHMEL
decrease in the total amount of hazardous and BENERERYES BN
non-hazardous waste was due to the decrease in Do ETER T _MERSE
production volume in the 2024 Reporting Period. HEZRD -

(v)  Mitigation Measures and Reduction Initiatives (v) RERRRE N RRBHER

As mentioned above, the Group does not generate
much hazardous and non-hazardous emissions and
discharges. However, as a responsible corporation,
we are conscious of the effects of our operations
and activities may have on the environment and
constantly work on maximizing energy efficiency
and minimizing emissions, wastes generation,
disposal and discharges. We fully comply with all
applicable environmental laws, rules and regulations
and industrial standards in the markets we operate
in. We comply with Quality Management Systems
such as ISO 9000, to reduce pollution and improve

sustainability.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

BRI - AR E A E L
REEEREEHBYRESE
e AT ER—RBEHR
m¢¥ BMEHRIaENE
BRI R R R EK N
2 WHEZHUERERR
KAl - REEBTERY - B
BEYMEE  RENRIEREZR
HE c KMIT2ETEEHME
TEOMBERRELE R
Bl ~ 2800 AT 2T A o BP9
fEISO 90005 E 2 FIRE R -
VAR A5 23R m Al 4 E M o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Energy is the critical component of the Group's
operation, and the Group has to acquire energy
that originates from fossil fuels, which is exhaustible
and non-renewable energy. The Group has thus
established an energy consumption reduction
pathway with a long-term perspective as a
directional target. Because of that, the Group
makes its utmost to reduce energy consumption by

different energy measures.

. Established a resources management procedure

to regulate energy use;

. Turned off lighting, equipment and personal

computer during non-office hours;

. Switched off idling engines and air-conditioners

when not in use;

. Maintained air indoor room temperature at
24 to 26 Degree Celsius;

. Disseminated energy-saving message via

emails;

. Replaced conventional lightings with LED;

. Purchased environmentally friendly equipment

such as electric Rotomolded PVC machines;

. Procured equipment for video conferencing

to reduce the need for business trips; and

. Adopted reusable energy such as solar water

heaters in the dormitory.

R HEgRERKRSE
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&

During the 2024 Reporting Period, same as the
2023 Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
violation related to hazardous or non-hazardous
air emissions and wastes disposal, polluted water
discharges and we are determined to take all
necessary measures to achieve the same results for

the coming years.

USE OF RESOURCES

As an industrial operation, we consume various resources
including electricity, water, printing paper and ink and
packaging materials. We promote a company-wide goal
of conserving resources and have implemented various
measures to improve our resource saving performance.
Our aim is to minimize the impact to the environment
and achieve operational optimization while complying
with the relevant national and local laws and regulations.
We have established and enacted clear environmental
policies and measures designed to ensure the efficient
use of resources across our production facilities, office
administration, and employee activities, thereby supporting

sustainable development.

During each of the reporting periods, we have not
recorded any material non-compliance in respect of
any applicable laws and regulations on environmental
protection. Our Group continues to uphold our
established environmental protection and management
system. During the 2024 Reporting Period, we also did
not record any material non-compliance issue with the
applicable PRC laws and regulations in relation to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and the generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes that resulted in prosecution, conviction or penalty

being brought, made or imposed against us.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Environmental, Social

Energy Consumption

The table below recorded and compared the 2024
Reporting Period and the 2023 Reporting Period’s

resultant energy consumption:

and Governance Report

R HEgRERKRSE

() BERBERE
NRACERIL S — T POF R A

TE T FREBANRSERERE

Year ended 3| December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

Energy Consumption Unit 2024 2023 Changes
REIROH#E B —BomFE —T-=F L)
— Electricity Consumption (kWh) 9,838,880 8,998,170 +9.34%
—8Bh HFE(TRE)
Intensity (kWh/100 pieces) 54.66 44.99 +21.49%
BE(FTRE, 1001F)
— Unleaded petrol Consumption (Litres) 15,437 15810 -2.36%
*ﬂfu /‘L,/EE /ﬁ%%(ﬂ’)
Consumption (kWh) Nete @ 149,604 153,223 -2.36%
EFRE(F IR )P
Intensity (KWh/100 pieces) 0.83 0.77 +7.79%
BE(FTRF, 1001F)
— Diesel Consumption (Litres) 52,322 48,856 +7.09%
— 53 BRGH)
Consumption (kWh) Nete @ 560,017 522918 +7.09%
EFRE(F IR )P
Intensity (kWh/100 pieces) 3.1 2.6l +19.16%
BE(FTRF, 1001F)
Total Consumption (kWh) 10,548,501 9,674,311 +9.04%
et HEFE(TRLE)

Note 3: Energy conversion factors used for diesel and
petrol are based on the conversion factor
mentioned in the ESG Reporting Code.

During the 2024 Reporting Period, the increase

in diesel consumption was attributed to more

frequent logistics transportation across operational

plants in the PRC.

For the coming year, the Group will continue to

encourage and monitor our employees on energy

saving practices, and target to lower the energy

consumption by 2-3%.
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Water Consumption

The Group does not entail a massive amount
of potable water as it is not a water-intensive
industry. Water stress is a relatively less significant
threat affecting the business. The Group had no
difficulty in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
Nonetheless, the Group has established a water
consumption reduction pathway with a long-term

perspective as a directional target.

The table below recorded and compared the 2024
Reporting Period and the 2023 Reporting Period’s

resultant water consumption in Zhongshan:

FkE

RSB L BERKRER
BITE - HYEERKERA
K o FKIEE N B EH AR B
BRED) - REBREEK
REWEBBIREE - A > A
SEERYUREREATH
BIZH)EIKBEIR o

TREHLH L — T — NFEH
HEER T - = FREHRIL
BB AKE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEE

Water Consumption Unit 2024 2023 Changes
k& By —E-OF —T-=F £
— Zhongshan m? 194,149 223,409 -13.10%
—F 75K

— Intensity per production volume m*/ 100 pieces 1.08 I.12 -3.57%

—EETE

STk 1001

The Group works diligently in implementing
initiatives to save water, including but not limited
to placing reminders near the water facilities to
remind employees to conserve water. The Group
also operates a water treatment plant and obtains a
wastewater discharge license to treat and discharge
wastewater legally. The Group revamped the
wastewater treatment plant in 2018 to further
manage the increasingly stringent discharge caps set
out by the government. The Group also continues
to seek opportunities to use less water wherever
feasible. For example, condensers have been
installed in each workstation to collect steam from
the injection moulding department. The water-
saving project by combining two VOCs removal

systems has been in operation since 2021.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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BRI HERER/RBRSE
For the coming year, the Group will continue to REF - ANEB BB BN E
encourage and monitor our employees on water BEREWITEKER - BIEE
saving practices, and target to lower the water K EREE2-3% ©
consumption by 2-3%.
Paper and Packaging Materials and Other Raw (i) ARIR AN B AR B B R A R
Materials Consumption HE
The Group also acknowledges that packaging can ARBNRRBEHEAE
consume lots of resources, and thus proactively BR - BUEEEHREFHN
communicates with clients and suppliers to discuss HIEREB® - &1 MR ah R R
any potentials to minimise packaging in the product LRERSBE
design.

Year ended 3| December
BE+-A=+—HLFE
Raw Materials Consumption Unit 2024 2023 Changes
FARERE By gl 3 —E-=fF B8
— Paper boxes Tonnes 2.50 2.90 -13.79%
—H= L]
— Intensity per production volume  Tonnes/100 pieces Insignificant (<0.001 tonnes/100 pieces) N/A
—E8TE W8, 100 TEAR(<0.001H, 1004) TiEA
— Plastics packaging material Tonnes 2,500 2,600 -3.85%
— R BEME i
— Intensity per production volume  Tonnes/100 pieces 0.01 0.01 -
—EBTE 8, 1004
— Others, such as fabric clippings Tonnes 105 112 -6.25%
— HAth (1AW B ) i
— Intensity per production volume ~ Tonnes/ 100 pieces Insignificant (<0.001 tonnes/100 pieces) N/A
—EEEE g, 1001 REK(<0.001H, 1004) TiE R
Total Tonnes 2,607.5 2,7149 -3.96%
#mat L
As production volume decreased during the 2024 HR-ZZE-_NEREHAESE
Reporting Period, leading to a corresponding T BEeRMEFAE
reduction in the utilization of packaging materials. MR ©
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The amount of packaging material used is largely BEMBNEREERKER
dictated by our production volume and so we are FEARKZMOESE - FAHE
unable to target any serious reduction in packaging MEEARIBR D BEME R
materials. We will continue to monitor our usage BAE o 39 A% 4 4B 48 M
and look at ways to introduce more sustainable and HERAR - WRAREEHA
environmentally friendly materials where possible. EBIAE AT FHE R ERERM
#t
We consider our office paper use immaterial, BARR/BMPA=NAREKA
however, to save paper consumption, we have WK - A - REKHER
implemented or in the process of implementing the ERE BB ERAEE S
following measures in our offices: EEE AN
. Avoid unnecessary printing and print on both * iR B EY 51 ED R 57
sides; ER&EmEIED
. Use recycled papers and reuse paper-made . ERRERE - WEERE
products such as envelopes and folders; and BEH  XHREAERR
R
. Replace the use of papers by sharing and . BRBUNEFBRAHLER
storing information and documents in FREE B R IR AR
electronic formats. REVEER ©
A3: Environment and Natural Resources A3 REREBAER
The Group’s business operations and activities do not AR B R B R IR IR
create significant environmental impact and hazards. As REBEEFZERKE - AEEEREA
a responsible corporation, the Group has implemented BEECECEMREREREK B
the environmental protection policy and has complied BTEREMROMARRESE
with all national and local environmental laws, rules EDIRIBEARATERE - XEE
and regulations, and industry standards. The Group is HOBRHER  BREBRRREZE
committed to conserving resources in order to reduce its REiE & BRI o N5 B Hi 5 IR
impact on the environment as well as saving operational B E - U RHERRARNE
costs. The Group cooperates with the local government g UHRgRI e lteg

agencies and support environmental organizations’

activities to build a "green” society.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Environmental Awards

With the support of many environmental-friendly
measures, the Group proactively took part in the Cleaner
Production Partnership Programme, co-organised by the
Environmental Protection Department and the Economic
and Information Commission of Guangdong Province.
The Group takes great pride in being recognised as
"Hong Kong — Guangdong Cleaner Production Excellent
Partners (Manufacturing)”. This recognition affirmed our
conscientious efforts on adopting cleaner production

technologies and practices with notable achievements.

Awareness

Sustainability is now crucial to our daily life, our society
and even our future generation. The Group could protect
the earth by utilizing natural resources and slowing down
resources’ depletion and ecosystem degradation. These
all require efforts across departments and organisations.
Training sessions arranged for employees are indispensable.
An environmental consultant is also employed to engage
in monitoring and suggesting areas for environmental
improvement. The vegetarian and sustainable seafood
menu is also given to employees to choose from at the
canteen. There was no incident with significant impacts
on the environment and natural resources in the 2024

Reporting Period.

During the 2024 Reporting Period, freshwater, fossil fuels,
electricity and packaging materials for normal production
operation were the key elements which were considered
to have an impact on the environment. The Group has
continued to support all measures to reduce, reuse,
recycle, and replace as far as possible and practicable as
laid down in our environmental policy and measures. The
Group did not receive any warning or complaint notice
from any governmental environmental agencies, clients or
business partners for the violation of any environmental
rules and regulations, the act of polluting the environment
or causing any environmental troubles. For the coming
year, the Group will continue to achieve zero complaints
and no pollution occurrences, and to explore new avenues
and means to accomplish our goals of conserving natural

resources and protecting the environment.
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&

Climate-related Disclosures

0

Governance

Climate change has caused frequent extreme weather
and has had an impact on the business operations of the
Group. Therefore, climate change risks are considered
by our Board to be material risks and the Board is
responsible for overseeing and formulating working
mechanisms to identify, prevent and mitigate climate

change issues that may have a significant impact.

The Group understands that stakeholders expect us to be
managing and mitigating climate change risks in line with
local and global commitments and recommendations. We
recognise that the impacts of climate change are varied
and long-ranging and the risks identified could prevent
us from meeting our strategic objectives and could result
in adverse operational, compliance and financial impacts.
Thus, the Board meets regularly to oversee our strategies
and management approaches related to climate risks and
opportunities, as well as the disclosure of information. We
have implemented a climate change policy statement to
guide our operations and reduce our impact on climate

change while strengthening our business resilience.

As the world transitions toward a lower-carbon sustainable
economy, there are inevitable areas that our Group can
contribute to this. After discussions with our stakeholders,
we have identified energy and water as immediate areas
that we can tackle to both combat climate change and

reduce potential costs in the future.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Management's Role: EEENAR

Oversight of climate-related risks and opportunities
is managed directly by the Board. The CEO
holds the overall responsibility for ensuring that
the strategies and policies set by the Board are

effectively implemented across the organization.

The Board is also responsible for the development
of appropriate skills and competencies through
training programs, professional development
opportunities, and assessments of current
capabilities. This ensures that the board members
and relevant personnel are well-equipped to
oversee and address climate-related risks and

opportunities.

The Management Team, led by the CEO, plays a
critical role in the governance of climate-related
risks and opportunities. The Management Team is
responsible for examining and addressing climate
related risks and opportunities, and day to day

implementation of policies set by the Board.

The Group utilizes various controls and procedures,
such as internal audits, performance reviews, and
sustainability reporting, to support the oversight
of climate-related risks and opportunities. These
controls and procedures are integrated with other
internal functions, such as finance, operations, and
human resources, to ensure a cohesive approach to

sustainability.
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@

Strategy

We strive to understand the impacts brought by climate
change to our business operations and thus continuously
seek to advance the relevant studies, as well as our action
plans and mitigation measures. Subject to the on-going
development of our climate-related risk assessment and
management practices, we will further study the feasibility
and practicality of integrating the financial impacts of
climate-related risk and other sustainability issues into our

financial planning at the corporate and project levels.

Physical Acute Risk

The Group has identified extreme weather such
as typhoons, heavy rain, thunder and lightning and
flooding that can cause physical acute risk. The potential
consequences include delivery or shipment delay as well
as damage to documents, equipment and even employees’
health and life. The above potential consequences will
cause economic losses to and increase operating costs of

the Group.

The Group has established different measures as below
to prevent and minimize the negative effect of extreme

weather.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Physical Acute Risk

Extreme weather

R KSR

R HEgRERKRSE

YRR R

Preventative and mitigation measures

Taf kR

Typhoons

Heavy Rain and Flooding

TR MoK

Thunder and Lightning

5e-5
==]

&

Attach duct tapes to windows to avoid damage

Move equipment to safety areas in advance

Reinforce equipment and components that may be blown away
Inform and negotiate with clients and third-party suppliers of potential
delays in advance

Arrange work from home for staff according to the guidelines of local
observatory

HEEBBHMERP L# R BE

RASREBBEERZRE

ANTET 7] BE & 12 R AE HORR 8 S BB
RATSARP RE =S HER AL HBROERIEN - WEEETHE
REEHWRRENESILHETIERTE

Check that all windows are shut as secure as possible

Reinforce equipment and assets which may be damaged or blown away
Arrange work from home for staff according to the guidelines of local
observatory

BEMAEPCEN EFRE MR

INE AT gE & WIRR SR ERN R R B E
REEHRRENESILHETERTHE

Keep good conditions of earthing devices

Remind employees to save data and turn off computers

REFZ IR B BRI R A R A

EEER TRFEURIARIFE

Physical Chronic Risk

The Group has identified extreme weather such as
sustained high temperature during the year could cause
physical chronic risk. The potential consequences include
a higher chance of getting heatstroke for employees,
increasing turnover rate and work-related injuries. The
demand for cooling for the working environment will
be increased, which may lead to an increase in power

demand and operating costs of the Group.

YIRS MR
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The Group has established different measures as below REBEHEATZETRNE
to prevent and minimize the negative effects of extreme B - DA TE B 4% v K SR S B B E R
weather. BREEHIE -

Physical Chronic Risk YIRS 1 b

Extreme weather Preventative and mitigation measures

RiR KR Taf R R ER

Sustained high temperature - Keep a First-aid kit convenient

=R - Keep cold water available 24 hours a day

- BEREREESERANLE
- BRRMPDEHREZK

Climate-related Transition Risk Rz ABRA R

Transition risk Risk description Potential Business Impact Mitigation Measures

EAE R B B 3t BEEBTE BRI

Legal and policy risk Local governments may - Increase operation - Regular review of
enforce stricter carbon cost and potential for relevant legislation.
emission reduction policies, litigation. - Set up near term target
potentially raising the to demonstrate the
carbon emission costs for Group's decarbonization
enterprises’ production and effort.

operations. This includes
changes to government
policies, laws, and
regulations, such as carbon
pricing and renewable

electricity pricing.

A R E R WHBARERBITERE -  IMIMEERAKSIE - EHESHEBER o
MR PFER R - BER AT RE ARRARY AT BENE o - REOHERE - UAERT
FEMEELEEMELD AEE B AR5 T PR
B - BEBERE HEE S -

BUFHGR -~ ERROERE
B MEEE R A BAR
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Risk description
[ B i

Transition risk

Lebicl

Potential Business Impact

BEERY

Mitigation Measures

BRI

Technology Risk Technological improvements
that support the transition

to a lower-carbon system.

SR [AECHR B8 AR A Byl
U -

AR

- Failing to upgrade -
to more efficient,

sustainable, or

automated technologies
could result in

higher operation

costs and reduced

competitiveness.

- WREREES -

M BARERED

EREERHORM - -

REAE L s
EHARBFNTRE -

Explore new technologies,
sustainable materials, and
techniques.

Adapt to changes in the
cost and availability of
raw materials and utilities
like renewable electricity,
water, and gas, including
the relevant costs of
securing and maintaining
sufficient supply.
REFRM - ATREM
R R o

B R AR A R R ]
BEEN - KFXA
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Transition risk

Lebicl

Risk description
[ B

Potential Business Impact

BEEBY

Mitigation Measures

BRI

Market and reputation Customers have increasingly

risk

strict requirements
for carbon emission
management of their

suppliers, while the

decarbonization of products

and services may become
an important standard for

customers to choose from.

Products or services that are

not low-carbon may lead to

a decrease in demand.

There are stricter

M5 MEEE R

requirements for

transparent carbon emissions
information, and enterprises

need to increase investment

in the management of
related performance. Poor
performance in climate
information disclosure may
lead to reputation damage,
declined stock price, or

difficulties in financing.

ERHEHREOmIENE

BERAZRB - MR
7 i N2 AR5 B0 i Bk 7T BE K
REPETEENIAE
ERAE o FERHRE m iR
BAIBE BB TR o

HREEERERNBERAKE

FEBNER EF

EIMAERREEMEERT
EERA - EREE K
BAIEKRBANE - WS
HOEREZE  BET
B ERE T EERR
B

There will be a risk of
a decline in sales and
reputation if end-user is
getting more prefer on
environmentally friendly
products or services
and we do not have

these options for our

customers.
WA P R E

PRERIR AL EE A 3 AR
% MBEMAEERE
PiRfiaREE - 8
BEEHETBRE
BXEMRR -

Expand the product range
to cater to a broader
audience and adapt

to changing customer
preferences, including
eco-friendly and ethically
produced lines to attract
environmentally conscious
consumers.

Obtain environmental
related certifications

like to demonstrate
commitment to
sustainability.

Adopt environmentally
friendly production
processes, such as waste
reduction and circularity

programs.

MREMEREE -
A B2 R
B WEETE (R
BRI - BHFERER
HEBREERENE
mAR - ARSI RFRRE
BREOHESE o
ERUREHARE - A
REAH AT B R A
g
RARREERE @ 0
AnEE YRR KRR

£
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Climate-related Opportunities

The Group recognizes that climate change not only
presents a range of physical and transitional risks, but
also provides emerging opportunities for our businesses.
Measures such as improving energy efficiency, increasing
the utilization of renewable energy, transitioning to
sustainable resource management practices, and adopting
green and low-carbon technologies have not only resulted
in direct cost savings but also a reduction in energy

expenses.

Looking ahead, we anticipate the opportunities that
will arise from long-term regulatory frameworks and
carbon trading. These mechanisms will enable us to
explore alternative approaches to combat climate change,
leveraging sustainable financial instruments. As the global
economy transitions towards carbon neutrality, we remain
committed to assessing and managing the climate-related

risks and opportunities associated with our business.

Risk Management

We have updated the assessment methodology through
a climate scenario analysis to reassess climate risks and
opportunities across our operations in the PRC under
two consolidated scenarios in accordance with Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure (“TCFD")
recommendations. The two consolidated climate scenarios
are constructed based on public available scenarios which
include Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
("IPCC"), International Energy Agency (“IEA”) and
Network for Greening the Financial System (“NGFS”).
Based on the revaluation of our climate risk assessment
results, we have updated our mitigation measures across
various operational area. The following outlines the
scenarios and assumptions employed during our climate

risk assessment.

()

RIRMERAHE

REBRED  RIFB(CTEFR
—ZMERERRERE - RRERM
MEBREROBE - BUIRSE
IR SENFBARRMA - W
AFEREREEERER AR AL
BERRMEER  TEHEER
RXAR - TR EEEIRS I -

RERK  HMBEARMEEER
MR R 5 5 75 R AB o 3% 5 B S
ERMEIRRELSREZCNER
A NANSESR TR - BE
EEREBE RGP NEL - AP A
BY AN R E R ERFIEBAE
HR R R B

BMESBRBRERSWERTE S
% IR RRAEE M SR E T
ATCFDDWERE - EMELRETE
BREMTERMEFEOEGEE
BEHRERBRIES - MELRAER
REFRERDFATSHERERE -
HAEBERNEREZECEMEE
g([ipccl) - B s8R B(TIEA])
AR RITHEEREZESMAR
(INGFS]) o E 5% & 1% @b 51 1 45
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Consolidated Scenario Brown Scenario Turquoise Scenario

mEtER HelRR BResR

Timeframe Short-term — till 2030

Medium to long-term — till 2100
i B E BEH-EZ-T=%F
PRE-EZ-_—ZTF
Global Mean Global mean temperature rises of above Global mean temperature rises of
Temperature 3°C by 2100 I.5to 2°C by 2100

2RFHRE NI —ZZFZH2RTHRE e R —ZZF2ZH2RTHERE L7
3°C 1.5&2°C

Scenario Description  The scenario represents the future that only ~ The scenario represents the future that
current policies and nationally determined stringent and immediate policies will be
contribution are implemented with implemented by the companies that are
limited investments and climate actions to actively committed to climate action goals.
decarbonize. This would usually lead to This would usually result in high level of
high level of physical risk and low level of transition risks and low level of physical risks.

transition risk.

(EREE B IERRERRREBERBITEREERE X BWESRRERFERB DR RIEITE B 28
BB - BUABBRORERRIRITEESDH CEBEERELNRECK - HBATY
R WRBESERRKTOWERRE  EIEKF A E R & IEKTE YRR

ERFEERRER - B e

By gaining insight into the significant climate risks that BBAATHEZERMBREEERE
affect our business across our value chain, we can develop XBHERREERER - A0 AHI
effective strategies and measures to manage these risks BRI R i E 1B % F R R
and mitigate their financial and non-financial impacts. WREHEM B RIENEZE - £
Within our framework, we acknowledge climate change MEEERA - BMBERIEZEER R
as a strategic business risk and have integrated climate- BERMEBRER - W REAER
related risks and opportunities into our overall business B MBI AR M BEEBRER
strategy. Our objective is to enhance long-term resilience B - ZMWEER  BRE2ET
by comprehensively assessing, managing, and monitoring o BREREEAERETERMES
climate risks that may impact our operations. FRIRER - ER RN -

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Metrics and Targets

We strive to effectively manage and evaluate the risks and
opportunities arising from climate change. Throughout
the 2024 Reporting Period, we maintained continuous
monitoring of key metrics, specifically GHG emissions,
which serve as indicators of climate-related risks. These
targets aim to reduce overall GHG emissions and

electricity consumption.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse gases (GHG) include CO, and its non-
hazardous equivalents including nitrous oxide and methane
(collectively with CO,, “CO,e"). Greenhouse gas emissions
comprise Scope | direct emissions, which is direct
emissions from the fuel combustion in vehicles, and Scope
2 energy indirect emissions, which is emissions resulting
from the use of purchased electricity. The table below
recorded and compared the 2024 Reporting Period and
the 2023 Reporting Period’s GHG emissions:

RIE HERENR

)

®E

EIER A 17

HAIB AR B RE IR MG 4R AR
fEEROERAEE - R TN
FREMA - RAFESRRIRE
1# - LERERRIRAEERRER
MBERBHER ELEREER
EERLEREHRLAEE -

BE RPN

BERBOAERE)BE SRR
HEZSEWY BE-SILZAK
Fl (8 - & el Rl —E/LikE

BN - RERBINEBREHE EX
PER - BN IR FAELANE
B A RS ERRRREE R
BN AT N MmEEA TR
T%%Eﬁﬂ‘ﬁfftt:%—wiiﬁi,ﬁﬂiﬁi
= FHRENNEEREHEN -

=

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEE

GHG Emissions Unit 2024 2023 Changes
BEREHEN B —EZF ZEZ=fF )
Scope | Nete @ CO,e tonnes 179 171 +4.68%
&E 1= W —F(rIRE &
Scope 2 Note () CO,e tonnes 5,283 5129 +3.00%
#2150 W —SbiRE S
Total GHG emissions CO,e tonnes 5,462 5,300 +3.06%
BERBAESFNE —“RtREE
Intensity per production volume COze tonnes/ 0.30 0.26 +15.38%
1,000 pieces
EEEE —“RtEE
|,ooo1¢
Note 4:  Scope | refers to direct emissions from vehicles that Hizt4 - BE KRB AREEAER =R
the Group owns. BIEREHEN ©
Note 5: Scope 2 refers to indirect emissions resulting from the Wiats - BEIEAREANEREBEAE D
generation of purchased electricity consumed within FREE R BEHERR -
the Group.
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The Group targets to lower the total GHG emissions by
2-3% for the coming year by implementing various energy

use efficiency initiatives stated in Section Al (v).

For the 2024 Reporting Period, the Group’s business
operations and activities did not lead or participate in any
events or issues that might impact the climate or result
in the change of the climate significantly. The Group has
already taken measures to lower indirect CO, emission

and fresh water consumption for the coming year.

Greening is a part of the crucial components in building
an environmentally friendly working environment. It
brings many benefits such as serving as a buffer and sink
for heavy rain, mitigating urban heat island effect and
eventually uplifting the quality of living. Greening reserves
around 30% coverage of the Zhongshan factory, planting
varies kind of vegetation and trees. The Group also places
small-sized plants to boost greening further and improve

air quality in the factory.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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AEENERETEBEREAI(VE
Prftm SRR ERR KGR - &
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SOCIAL ASPECTS

1.1

1.2

Social Areas Overview

The Group acts in an honest and transparent principle and aims to

support the building of a harmonious society and a mutually beneficial

relationship with our stakeholders including employees, customers,

suppliers, professional services providers, local communities as well as

the governing authorities. During the formulation and implementation

of our ESG strategies, policies, rules and regulations, the Group

incorporates our long and short-term goals with consideration for our

stakeholders and society. The Group believes that our modest acts will

ultimately benefit the stakeholders and general society.

Employment and Labour Practices Aspects

Bl:

Employment

The Group recognizes that employees are the cornerstone
of business development. It motivates the Group to build and
maintain a harmonious, fair, and safe working environment.
More importantly, the Group ceaselessly strives to enhancing
our social responsibility. The Group has established and kept an
updated employment policy based on the National Labour Law.
The Group has also been certified by ICTI CARE Foundation, to
demonstrate its commitment to promoting safe and fair working
conditions. During the 2024 Reporting Period, there was no
case of non-compliance regarding compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, equal opportunities, diversity, and

discrimination.

The Group adopts fair and equal employment and recruitment
procedure and prohibits any forms of discrimination. Hence,
candidates’ experiences, abilities and the Group's business needs
are criteria for shortlisting candidates, regardless of race, gender,
age, marital status, pregnancy, family status, sexual orientation,
religion, and nationality. The remuneration package is regularly
reviewed. Successful candidates with proven track records can

enjoy promotion and salary increment.

R HEgRERKRSE

HEHEHE

AEEBREAELEARNTE - EESFER
M@t E WHET TP HER XK
BRMHE LR ERBARESHNERIE
BEMNEE - HERBRIRE  HERERR
B - BER - RAIRRER  AEEEARARE
HER  BEEkEhERME - REEREHMN
BEZ NRAERNERERTERA -

= (1= AL =y &5 =
BN ST F
Bl:  1E1F

AEBERANBEEREBERNER - 1E
SHPREFRRTMBEEME - 2TNL
ENTHERE FEENE  AEELT
Wi AR ML EEER - NREECD
RIBCE K B 805 ) Bl E X R ¥ E A ER
BR - REBDPESICTHEESSHR
& RABMABNERERZERFFTHER
HEEHE N T _WNFREHRN - WE
EHBERERE HERET  FTE#
g ZRLERERENTARER

=

AEBERBAFRFERERBERF
WEE I FERFE AR EAR - Bt - RBHEL
B N RAKEXGRER B RKBE
R TawmiERk -~ R Fie - BER
o EE - REAOR  MERE - mBRE
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EREARBERERRFNEARE TR
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In order to providing all newcomers with a fundamental
understanding of the Group, the Group mandates all newcomers
to attend an orientation training, covering (a) Group's history;
(b) employment terms and conditions, welfares and benefits; and
(c) adherence to the relevant policies, systems, and procedures.
All the policies are available in the Staff Handbook for reference
at any time. The Group is a member of Ethical Supply Chain
Program (“ESCP"”) (ICTI). Therefore, the Group must also
comply with the relevant requirements set out in ESCP's Code

of Business Practices.

Benefits and Welfares

The Group contributes to “Five social insurance and one
housing fund”, namely endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, employment injury
insurance, maternity insurance, and housing provident fund,
for the employees as required. Additionally, all employees are
entitled to various statutory holidays and paid leave, including
paternity leave and maternity leave. Moreover, in recognition
of employees’ hard work, the Group will reward employees
and benchmark employees’ salaries against industry norms to
maintain a competitive remuneration package to the talented. All
employees shall participate in the annual appraisal to review their

performance.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Team Profile

As of 31 December 2024, the Group employed 1,654

employees in Zhongshan and Hong Kong, of which all are full-

time employees.
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683

566

Male 5214

B 2024 —Z=—F

Figure |: Number of Employees by Gender
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BRI #HE8RER
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Figure 2: Number of Employees by Employment Type
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Figure 3: Number of Employees by Role B3 : B E 5 rESAE
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Figure 5: Number of Employees by Geographical Region
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During the 2024 Reporting Period, the Group did not have

any incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating

to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare. The Group is

confident to achieve the same result for the coming year.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 856 employees whom

voluntarily left. Below is the breakdown of the employment

turnover by gender, age group and geographic region:
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Figure 8: Employment Turnover Rate by Geographical Region

The Group interviews every individual to understand their
reasons to resign and regularly review the remuneration

packages and the operation practices accordingly.

Occupational Health and Safety (“OHS")

The Group remains very focused to health and safety. It is the
Group’s obligation to provide a safe working environment. The
Group has established a health and safety committee, comprising
the senior human resource manager, administrative manager,
safety manager, representatives from the security and fire
service department, and a labour union. The committee’s duty is
to superintend the health and safety performance of the Group
and identify potential risks in which controls are either absent,
ineffective, or incompliant. The committee also formulates
policies to mitigate the risks if applicable. Correspondingly,
the Group regularly commissioned third-party to audit OHS
performance. In the 2024 Reporting Period, there was no non-
compliance case with regulations concerning occupational health

and safety.
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Furthermore, risk assessment is conducted annually for all
working areas to identify high-risk position and potential threats
inside the working area. The Group offers corresponding
personal protective equipment. Regular medical checks are
provided to employees to ensure they are free from any
occupational illness. The Group also schedules stress management
courses for employees to have good mental health. The Group
adopts shift work as well to reduce employees’ work stress and
chemical exposures. In addition, equipment’s contractors carry
out regular checks of the machines to test the functionality
to ensure employees are free from the threat of equipment's

instability and malfunction.

Aside from "Five social insurance and one housing fund”,
the Group provides additional medical insurance for extra
protection. Better still, the Group has attained the certification
of OHSAS 18001 to systemise the occupational health and safety

management in the workplace.

The Group had zero work-related fatalities in the past three
years including the 2024 Reporting Period in any of our
operations. Furthermore, during the 2024 Reporting Period,
there were 5 light injury cases of factory workers from careless

work.

A total of |14 lost days were recorded during the 2024
Reporting Period, which was 21 days more than the 2023
Reporting Period. The Group offered prompt assistance to the
injured or the affected. The Group'’s health and safety committee
launched investigations to examine the root cause of accidents
and implemented corrective and preventive actions to avoid

reoccurrence.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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B3:  Development and Training B3: R K&IEI
Toy industry evolves with time, and the Group understands that MAXBEREES  XEERQRMME
we have to keep up to the changes to thrive in the market and BRI - PTIS EBAR R REITER
sustain in the industry. Consequently, each business unit together BERR At - SEBBELERANE
with the human resources department stipulates a yearly training BREEFRE2BEEHEHEIGE - RE
plan, covering technical and management topics to all employees. BT RERHRGELERE o REE IR
The Group also sponsors employees to attend external training RERHEED - XREEF2MEINTEII
to acquire the latest knowledge in the market. In the 2024 BEEMS LS AH c RZTZNFER
Reporting Period, all employees took part in different training L8R TEEREHZ2ETREI - BB
and average training hours of employees were approximately 33 B3I IR BR A B33/ N o
hours.
Internal External
Training (No. of employees) EZI(EE AR Ak HNER
Percentage of employees trained FIEEEDL
2024 —EomE 99.27% 7.44%
2023 —F== 49.41% 49.41%
% of employees trained by gender BMERE S ZIEETE S
Male Bt
2024 —E-MEF 40.93% 60.98%
2023 “Eo=F 36.67% 36.67%
Female eg i
2024 —EBE-MFE 59.07% 39.02%
2023 “Eo=F 63.33% 63.33%
% of employees trained by operational role REEBVESZIEETDL
Senior management EREEAR
2024 —EComE 0.37% -
2023 —E-=F 0.40% 0.40%
Middle and Junior management PERDOREEAE
2024 —E-mEF 1.46% 19.51%
2023 —E-=F 1.67% [.67%
Supervisor FE
2024 —E-EF 1.89% 25.20%
2023 —E=F 2.00% 2.00%
General staff —RET
2024 —E-mEF 96.29% 55.28%
2023 —E-=F 95.93% 95.93%
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Internal External
Average Training (Hours) RS (NEF) e HhER
Total employee trained FIEEEH
2024 —ESEmNF 32.25 0.34
2023 —T=F 15.81 1581
Average training hours completed per employee BUEREPNEREE TR FITE
by gender B3
Male B
2024 —E-E 32.55 0.52
2023 —EC =4 26.86 26.86
Female i
2024 —EBE-OFE 32.03 0.20
2023 —E-=4F 9.24 9.24
Average training hours completed per employee REBERVEINEEEETRNT
by operational role B R
Senior management BREEAE
2024 —ECIEF 6.63 -
2023 =4 6.40 6.40
Middle and Junior management PERRAREEAR
2024 —EBEFE 49.92 5.12
2023 —E-=4F 14.29 14.29
Supervisor F1E
2024 —E-MEF 48.00 5.03
2023 —E-=4F [4.12 [4.12
General staff —RET
2024 —ZENE 31.92 0.17
2023 T =4F 15.98 15.98

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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The Group deems the new generation a pillar of society and
has established an internship programme. Sophisticated and
experienced seniors train up fresh graduates so that they can be

well-prepared to bring innovation and creativity to the Group.

Labor Standards

The Group strongly believes children shall enjoy a pleasant
childhood. No child is allowed to work in the Group. The Group
performs identity checks in the recruitment process to ensure
the regulatory working age is compliant. The Group also believes
in the importance of work-life balance as it links to productivity
and well-being. The Group neither encourages nor forces
employees to work overtime. Furthermore, all illegal means such
as retention of identity cards or passports, intimidation, coercion,

and undue pressure are strictly prohibited.

Employees are entitled to statutory leave and various kinds of
paid leave, which help them take sufficient rest. The Group
is always meticulous about the production schedule to avoid
overtime work. The Group reviews workflow carefully in the
event of a significant amount of overtime work needed. The

Group will seek assistance from relevant institutions if necessary.

Furthermore, the Group also highly appreciates employees to
participate in leisure and social activities such as the Chinese
New Year event to share warmth and happiness among
colleagues. Labour union has been formed, and all employees
preserve the right to speak. Other than the benefits and
welfares above, the Group arranges monthly meetings with the
labour union representatives to understand employees’ points of

view.

In the 2024 Reporting Period, same as the 2023 Reporting
Period, the Group was in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations relating to preventing child and forced labour, and as

such no rectification was required.
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B5:

Supply Chain Management

The business depends heavily on suppliers’ cooperation. Building
trust and reliability is a golden rule to build up a long-term
relationship with them. As of 31 December 2024, the registered
suppliers of the Group consisted of 261 suppliers from the
PRC, 18 suppliers from Hong Kong, and | supplier from other

countries.

Before signing a contract, the Group conducts an assessment
and sample testing to assess suppliers’ quality standards, and
achievements in environmental protection and corporate social
responsibility. The price is not the only selection consideration,
equipment level, productivity and reputation are also taken into
account. The Group also attentively concerns a safe working
environment and an ethical business culture in the selection
process. Moreover, samples testing must pass through quality

check requirement for contract approval.

Other than that, the Group carries out an annual assessment
to review suppliers’ services quality, on-time delivery ability,
fulfilment of the tender requirements and alignment with the
Group's policies. In the 2024 Reporting Period, the Group
assessed leading suppliers and they all passed. The suppliers who
are unable to meet the requirements will be removed from the

supplier list if applicable.

The Group keeps close contact with the suppliers to ensure
the shipping date, logistics status and supplies can match our
production and delivery schedule. The Group closely monitors
the updates on local, regional, and even international cross-
border regulations from time to time to reallocate resources at

the earliest.
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C-TPAT Security Policy

The Group complies with the Customs-Trade Partnership
Against Terrorism (“C-TPAT"). In order to enjoy the entitled
benefits in return, the Group, suppliers, and contractors
are working closely to implement, as required by C-TPAT,
physical security measures, access control, security assurance in
procedures, and offering education and training. A supply chain
guarantee of C-TPAT Security Policy is ready for suppliers and
contractors. Due to the importance of such policies and laws,
the employees responsible for import and export shall attend
training related to the relevant ordinance and regulations at least

twice a year.

Green Procurement

To uphold the responsibility to disseminate sustainability to
suppliers, the Group always strives to exploring alternatives
to use less packaging materials and fewer plastics as much
as feasible. The Group also states specifically on tender
documents to encourage suppliers to adopt products with eco-
labels or environmentally friendly products. In the selection
process, priority is given to those awarded with an ISO 14001
Environmental Management System certificate and an I1SO 9001
Quality Management System certificate. Local suppliers are also

preferred to limit the environmental impact from transportation.
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Bé:

HERERBRE

Product Responsibilities

The Group has been awarded with a certificate of the ESCP,
indicating that the Group adheres to the ICTI Code of Business
Practices, aligning the Group’s practices with international norms

in the global toy industry supply chain.

Quality Assurance

The impacts to children from harmful and unsafe toys can be
persistent and untreatable. As a result, the Group has established
a product monitoring and inspection procedure to standardise
the quality check. In practice, the Group attains certification of
ISO 9001 Quality Management System and Good Manufacturing
Practice (GMP). The ISO standard provides guidance for
implementing a systematic quality management system to ensure
product quality, while GMP, a widely adopted quality assurance
system, ensures the production of safe and consistent products
by establishing standards for raw materials, premises, equipment,
sanitation, personnel training, and quality management. Although
the Group is a toy trader, it also carries out inspections and
random checks to review the quality of toys. It assures toys
strictly follow local and international safety and advisory
requirements such as CE marking, Consumer Product Safety
Commission, STM F963-Standard Consumer Safety Specification
for Toy Safety. The Group is verified by a third-party to ensure
their supply chain security aligns with international supply-chain

security standards.

In addition, the Group has designed a clear and precise label to
identify toys and separate defective products. The instruction
manual is attached with the product to guide consumers to
properly use products. Safety alert labels are placed at the
package’s surface or containers to alert consumers to keep
toys properly, avoiding children from mistakenly swallowing
or inhaling the tiny parts that may results in suffocation. No
reported incident in product responsibility happened in the 2024
Reporting Period.
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Given the significance of the toys' quality assurance, the Group
pays additional attention to raw materials. All materials used
in the products are entirely compliant with the Restriction of
Hazardous Substances. Providing testing reports and certificates
to prove the products’ quality and harmlessness is a must-do item
for our suppliers. The Group randomly tests product samples,
and a third-party testing laboratory carries out inspections before
mass production. The Group operates a laboratory, which is
certified by the China National Accreditation Service, to examine
the products randomly. The laboratory has attained ISO 17025
Testing and Calibration Laboratories certification. This enables
laboratories to demonstrate that they operate competently and
generate valid results, thereby promoting confidence in their

work both nationally and around the world.

All validating report are well-documented. In case of any fail
reports of the toys, the Group will immediately cease the
delivery process and recall them. Meanwhile, the Group remains
active in communicating with customers regarding the products’

quality, specifications, and testing results.

The Group exported more than 20 million products yearly. The
quality management department records each complaint and
notifies relevant departments for investigation and coming up

with improvements and suggestions for the problem if any.

Thanks to the awareness of an extraordinarily high product
quality standard, the Group is pleased to announce that there
was no product recall or return regarding health and safety
issues or material complaint during the Reporting Period. The
Group is proud that there has been no material complaint or
claim on its products quality and its products have not been
subject to any investigation by government authorities on
quality or safety as well. For the coming year, the Group has
the confidence to maintain the same good track record with its

sound management control.
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Based on a customer satisfaction survey to significant customers,
covering seven aspects: productivity, samples delivery, quality
management and product quality, the results revealed that
customers were satisfied with the Groups’ productivity, and
they also advised an improvement on samples on-time delivery.
Clients' feedback is the Group's motivations to perform better,
so the Group promptly recruited more inspectors to conduct
quality checks to speed up the processing time and keep product

quality stable.

Data Privacy

The Group respects the privacy and intellectual property
rights. The Group collects data in a lawful way and solely
for recruitment or the stated purposes. The storage and
transmission of personal data must be encrypted and with up-
to-date antivirus protection to prevent data leakage that harms
clients, suppliers, individuals, or other parties that have trusted
the Group with their information. Likewise, the data shall only
be retained for a designated period and for specified purposes.
A guideline and procedure have been established to guide every
one of the Group to properly handle personal data. The data
can be updated and corrected by the data holders at any times
in writing upon request. The Group must provide information
on how they use clients’ information in the past 12 months upon
request. Only a handful of well-trained employees have the

access right to the sensitive data.

Under no circumstance will the Group disclose personal data and
confidential information to third parties or to the public without

clients’ consent.

During the 2024 Reporting Period, same as the 2023 Reporting
Period, the Group did not have any incidents of non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to advertising, labelling and privacy
matters. The Group also targets the same result for the coming

years ahead.
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Intellectual Property Right

The Group only sell and trades products that are properly
licensed. The Group also abides by the copyright and patent
laws of the United States as well as other countries. The Group
endeavours to communicate with its business partners about
intellectual property rights protection and also acknowledges that

laws and regulations can protect the Group’s right.

For the 2024 Reporting Period, same as the 2023 Reporting
Period, the Group did not have any of any infringement of its
or any other intellectual property rights including which had or
could have a material adverse effect on our business, and there
were no legal proceedings against the Group. The Group will
continue to maintain similar results on intellectual property rights

in the coming years ahead.

Anti-corruption

Integrity gives great importance to brand image and performance.
Rigidly laws and compliances bound the Group on anti-
corruption. The Group must obey national and regional laws and
regulations in business operation. The code of conduct is well-
defined and outlines the area of corruption risk and procedures
to handle advantages. The Group's attitude against corruption is
stated clearly to all employees. Any form of bribery, extortion,
fraud, and money laundering is forbidden. An internal control
system has been established to review the operation flow and
assure operation consistency. Employees can remain anonymous
to report any suspected cases to the Group. The Group will not

condone any unlawful acts or corruption.

Refresher training was regularly scheduled, especially for those
post-holders with a high corruption risk. The directors and
employees had, on average, two (2) training hour on anti-
corruption topic in the 2024 Reporting Period. Anti-corruption
training material will also be delivered to all employees and
directors. Same as the 2023 Reporting Period, there was no
alleged case of bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering

in the 2024 Reporting Period.

R HEgRERKRSE

TR EEE

AEBERFEREERFAINER - NEBETE
STRBIA R BB R MRERENE o AEBEH
NAMBERREREEBRHBE - URER
ERAAREAEBENOERER -

MR- FREY R =FREH -
AR BT R0 EL S & S AT Hth SR EE
W1TR  BEDSKEHRAREERMOEBEEEKR
PRFENITR - INEHHAREEREEFA o
RE - AREE BB MBERET HRFAERK
% °

B RES

HERERETRRERMEERESR -
AEBABTERRESNEEELR - K
SEVAREHLEPETERMILRZE
BER - TRTRAESHESRE R
BREEMNENEF - ASEHEISHRE
EEAZRBETEREEE - AEERAILE
MEANZE - BR - FREEERE -
ARRIERLABMERGIE - st a8
MEREREE-RE - REAWUAERR
AEBERBEFARUER - AEEHTE
RREMIBETRAREITTR o

REBE D LHEH#EEI - HRRAR
BESEBHIAL c R-ZT - FREH
A EEREECETFEH M Q D E
R ESEE BN  RESHIME
D ETHEREBRESE - KT
ERERAN MR- ZT_=FHREH I
BEMIEESE - 9R - FREEREN
Az -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
—RCEER

63



64

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HEBRERERS

B8  Community Involvement

Business development closely connects with the community, and
it is the social responsibility of the Group to utilise our power
to assist the needy in society. Employees and their families are
welcome to participate in voluntary activities. The Group will
continue to work diligently with the community with charities,

employees, and their families.
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Biographical Details of Directors

The biographies of Directors as of 31 March 2025 are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Qinghui (“Mr. Jiang”), Chairman of the Company and Chairman of

the Nomination Committee

Aged 50, joined the Company as an Executive Director and was appointed
as the Chairman of the Company on 25 April 2023 and 23 June 2023

respectively. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

He has 25 years of investment and senior management experience in large-
scale chain restaurants and commercial properties. Since 2017, he has served
as a deputy to the People’s Congress of Shulan City, Jilin Province. He is
currently the vice president of Beijing Jilin Enterprise Chamber of Commerce
and the chairman of Beijing Shulan Enterprise Chamber of Commerce.
During 2023, Mr. Jiang, through a company wholly-owned by him, acquired
the convertible bonds issued by the Company in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$14,000,000, which are convertible into a total of 63,636,363
conversion shares based on the initial conversion price and all the convertible

bonds has converted into shares on 31 May 2023.

Mr. Weng Zudian (“Mr. Weng”), Member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 45, joined the Company as an Executive Director and was appointed as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 29 June 2023. He is also a

director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

He has over 20 years of multi-national experience in banking and corporate
finance sectors. From 2011 to 2018, he has worked as the manager for
the Bank of China Tokyo Branch. He is currently involved in enterprise
consultancy services for strategic, corporate structure restructuring, corporate
mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Weng obtained a Bachelor of Fine Arts from
Osaka University of Arts (" ABREZEMTAEE") in 2008.

Mr. Li Zhonghai (“Mr. Li”)

Aged 43, has over 20 years of experience in information technology sectors.
From 2003 to present, he involved in provision of consultancy services for
IT information system, computer applications, integration and solutions. Mr.
Li graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University, majoring in electrical engineering
and automation, with a bachelor’s degree in engineering in 2004 and obtained
a Master of Business Administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic

University in 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Shaopeng (“Mr. Lin”)

Aged 66, joined the Company as a consultant in December 2014 and a Non-
executive Director on 18 December 2017. He has been providing advisory
services to the Group's toys operation since December 2014. He is also
a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin has extensive

experience in factory and logistics management in the PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (“Mr. Kwok”), Chairman of the Audit

Committee and Member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 53, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 7 March 2019. Mr. Kwok holds a Master of Professional Accounting
degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master of Corporate
Governance degree from Hong Kong Metropolitan University (formerly
known as the Open University of Hong Kong) and a Honours Diploma in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University (formerly known as Hong
Kong Shue Yan College). Mr. Kwok is a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of each of The Hong Kong

Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute.

Mr. Kwok has over 29 years of experience in the field of accounting and
financial management. Mr. Kwok served as an independent non-executive
director of E&P Global Holdings Limited (formerly known as Siberian Mining
Group Company Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: |142), since February 2014 and resigned on 28 September 2022.
He has been an independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Rui Yuan
Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited, a company listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8249), since June 2012. Prior to his current
positions, Mr. Kwok served as a financial controller, the company secretary
and one of the authorised representatives of Forebase International Holdings

Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2310).
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Zhao Yong (“Mr. Zhao”), Member of the Audit Committee and the

Remuneration Committee

Aged 41,

on 10 September 2021. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from

joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive Director

Zhejiang University in July 2006 and a master agree in law (American Legal
Studies) from Thomas Jefferson School of Law in December 2009. Mr. Zhao
is qualified to practice law in the PRC and has been working at DeHeng Law

Offices (Hangzhou) as an attorney at law since April 2018.

Ms. Wang Yumei (“Ms. Wang”), Member of the Nomination Committee,

the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 42, has been acting as the deputy chief lawyer and one of the founders
of Hebei Shoudao Law Firm (3L & EEAIEHSFT). She has over 15 years
of experience in the legal and business practice of in the PRC, including
provision of annual legal retainer service for both government agencies and
enterprise units. Ms. Wang graduated from Hebei GEO University majoring in
Laws and obtained a Master of Laws from Hebei University in the PRC.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The Directors hereby present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended

31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial

statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Company and an indication of likely future
development in the Company's business, can be found in the Chairman’s
Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 6
to || of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Report of the

Directors.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2024 are set out

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 97.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect of
the year ended 3| December 2024 (2023: nil).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years is set out on pages 235 to 236.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year
and details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's reserve available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 981
of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company, amounted to HK$nil (2023:
HK$nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws
or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately HK$490.3 million of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately 81.34%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
HK$70.6 million of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the

largest supplier accounted for approximately 9.68%.
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None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owns more than
5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the

Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Qinghui
Mr. Weng Zudian
Mr. Li Zhonghai (appointed on 12 April 2024)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Lin Shaopeng

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (resigned on 28 February 2025)
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Mr. Zhao Yong

Ms. Wang Yumei (appointed on |2 December 2024)

In accordance with Article 85 of the Company's memorandum of association,
directors shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no updated information of directors of the Company required to be

disclosed pursuant to Rule [3.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Details of the directors’ and the chief executive’s remuneration are set out in

note | | to the consolidated financial statements.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and other officers of the Company

during the year.

DIRECTORS” AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed "MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS” disclosure in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or the controlling shareholder
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests of each of the directors or the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in

the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

None of the directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed "DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES” at no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or their spouse or minor children had any rights to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the

year.

INTERESTS AND LONG POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2024, the following interests of more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO:

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

RAEXRRG RE@BRED ZXE

BERNAREEHZEITIABRARA RS HE A
FEE(ERRLEBFRBEGROIEXVE) 2k - HER
1&@%‘¢%ﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁ 5 RAIE GBI 352{67A

FHa o HEMBRBEESTAEANG RN T R Z
ERSOAE °

EEREROIEER ZEF

BRIZEERERN - HERORERSZ#S AR IE
BFREEN  BE_T_NF+_A=1+—HLF
EAREMESRE - AN B g H A KB A BB EE R E
Az BEEEFHEBEAR R R EMEMEAR
%Zﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ*'ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ZE
BRARRFTLARRBARRES - IRAFEA
TR L EHER -

BRERSERPERAATREZRRESRETR

NZZBZWMEFZR=+T—H REARAREZHFK
HH“BW'J%3361'%%](‘%2#“31’;‘;.Eﬂﬁﬁfraﬂﬁz AR
TTRANS %A LRz 2 AL 20T



Report of the Directors
EEEHS

Long positions in the shares of the Company RADNTRB ZHE
Approximate
percentage of the
Company’s issued
Capacity and Personal Corporate Number of share capital
Name of shareholder nature of interest interest interest shares held (Note 5)
EARAREET
FERG REBHEIL
RER & SO RERNEE PN S AR R = (MH&ES)
Hurray Talent Investment Development Limited  Interest of controlled - 37392913 37,392,913 25.72%
corporation (Note I, 6)
FEREBERBERAA NS I AE s - 37392913 37392913 25.72%
(HFE1 - 6)
Mr. Li Zhonghai (“Mr. Li") Interest of controlled - 37,392,913 37,392,913 25.72%
corporation (Note I, 6)
TRFERE(TEE) R PERER 2 - 37392913 37,392,913 25.72%
GEIRED)
Mr. Wang Honggang (“Mr. Wang") Beneficial owner 16,000,000 _ 16,000,000 11.01%
(Note 6)
TAHREETEERED BEmBEAA 16,000,000 — 16,000,000 11.01%
(Hizte)
Mr. Ma Wenya Beneficial owner 15,400,000 — 15,400,000 10.59%
BXEREE BRBEAA 5,400,000 — 15,400,000 10.59%
CSC Holdings Limited (formerly known as “China Interest of controlled — 13,039,909 13,039,909 8.97%
Strategic Holdings Limited”) (“CSC") corporation (Note 2, 6)
FRANERARAF (AT REEFRAR)RZIEHAE 2 — 13,039909 13,039,909 8.97%
(ThREXR]) (Kf&E2 - 6)
U Credit (HK) Limited Interest of controlled - 13,039,909 13,039,909 8.97%
corporation (Note 2, 6)
BEE(EB)BERAR SNSRI s - 13039909 13,039,909 8.97%
(M2 ~ 6)
Hong Kong Huiheng Trading and Investment Co., Interest of controlled - 12,727,273 12,727,273 8.76%
Limited corporation (Note 3, 6)
BAEBEEESREBRAT REIEHDEE 2 s - 12727273 12,727,273 8.76%
(BI&E3 ~ 6)
Mr. Jiang Qinghui (“Mr. Jiang”) Interest of controlled - 12,727,273 12,727,273 8.76%
corporation (Note 3, 6)
BEEEE(REE]D) SE e ok - 12727273 12,727,273 8.76%
(PHEE3 ~ 6)
Mr. Ji Xiang (“Mr. Ji") Interest of controlled - 9,939,520 9,939,520 6.84%
corporation (Note 4, 6)
aenE(ELEE]) SNSRI ks - 9,939,520 9,939,520 6.84%
(Bg5E4 -~ 6)
Mr. Shen Jia ("Mr. Shen”) Beneficial owner 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 5.5%
(Note 6)
RERE(LEE]) BmBEAA 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 5.5%
(HizEe)
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37,392,913 shares were held by Hurray Talent Investment Development Limited,
which was owned as to 100% by Mr. Li. Accordingly, Mr. Li was deemed to be
interested in 37,392,913 shares of the Company under the SFO.

CSC had an indirect interest in the Company through its 100% indirect
ownership in U Credit (HK) Limited, which had security interest in 13,039,909
shares of the Company. U Credit (HK) Limited had enforced the security
interest in 13,039,909 shares on 4 July 2019.

12,727,273 shares were held by Hong Kong Huiheng Trading and Investment
Co., Limited, which was owned as to 100% by Mr. Jiang. Accordingly, Mr. Jiang
was deemed to be interested in 12,727,273 shares of the Company under the
SFO.

9,939,520 shares were held by Excel Jade Limited, which was owned as to 100%
by Mr. Ji. Accordingly, Mr. Ji was deemed to be interested in 9,939,520 shares of
the Company under the SFO.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 145,357,480 shares
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2024.

611,787,400 shares in issue of the Company was consolidated into 122,357,480
Consolidated Shares in issue upon Share Consolidation becoming effective on 24
May 2024. The effect of the number of shares will be divided by 5 issued shares
and no effect on the percentage of the Company's issued share capital.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of other
relevant interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company as at 31 December 2024 as required pursuant to section 336 of

the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 25 July 2014 (the "Old
Share Option Scheme”) and was valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from 25 July 2014. The Old Share Option Scheme has expired on 24 July
2024. Upon its expiry, no further options could be granted by the Company,
but the options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme before
expiration shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
terms of the Old Share Option Scheme. The share options that had been

granted to certain directors were all lapsed since 31 December 2021.

The number of options available for grant under the Old Share Option
Scheme as at | January 2024 and 30 June 2024 is Nil and Nil, respectively.

The New Share Option Scheme

On 29 October 2024, in view of the expiration of the Old Share Option
Scheme, the Board proposed to adopt a new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”) so that the Company can continue to
provide incentives or rewards to the Group's eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group. The New Share Option Scheme was adopted
by an ordinary resolution passed by the Shareholders at the special general
meeting held on 19 November 2024. The New Share Option Scheme is valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on |9 November 2024 (the

“Adoption Date”).

The maximum number of shares in respect of all share options to be granted
under the New Share Option Scheme and all share options and awards to be
granted under other share schemes of the Company (the “New Schemes")
was 14,535,748 shares, representing 10% of the issued shares of the
Company (excluding Treasury Shares) as at its Adoption Date.

Details of the New Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 29 October 2024.
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Since the adoption of the New Share Option Scheme and up to the date of
this report, no share options have been granted by the Company under the

New Share Option Scheme.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of options and awards
granted under all schemes of the Company during the year divided by the
weighted average number of issued shares of the Company for the period is 0%,
as no option or award was granted under all schemes of the Company during

that period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public
float of at least 25% of the Company's issued shares at the date of the annual

report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with laws and
regulations and any non-compliance may bring significant impact on the
Group’s operations. The Group's products are exported globally and the
major markets include the USA, the European union, Japan and the PRC. The
Group complied with those importing requirements, including product safety
and material selections, imposed by these importing countries. Compliance
with the PRC regulations are also essential to the Group manufacturing
operations in the PRC. The Group is continuously monitoring the evolving

regulations and ensure its compliance.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its immediate and long-
term business goals. During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were
no material and significant dispute between the Group and its employees,

customers and suppliers.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed |,654 employees (2023:
I,513) with staff costs amounted to approximately HK$109.8 million (2023:
approximately HK$106.1 million). Remuneration policies are reviewed
annually by the management of the Company. The Group's remuneration
policy is structured to consider comparable position in the market and the

prevailing business scale of the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Referring to the Company’s announcement on 22 January 2025, the Company
allotted and issued an aggregate of 9,400,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each for cash at the net issue price of approximately HK$0.12 per new share
under the general mandate on 22 January 2025 and completion took place
on 28 January 2025. The net proceeds from the subscription (after deduction
of expenses of the subscription) are estimated to be approximately HK$ 1.2
million. Saved as above, subsequent to 3| December 2024 and up to the date
of this report, the Board is not aware of any significant event affecting the

Group and requiring disclosure.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group encourages environmental protection and is committed to fulfil
its environmental, social and corporate responsibilities. Various investments
in optimizing energy use and paper use were made and will be made.
Measures were made to prevent or minimize pollutions and provide a safe
and healthy working environment. The Group continues to review the latest
technology and the best practices in the industry for adoption to address the

environmental, social and corporate responsibilities.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
were audited by Confucius International CPA Limited, who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment, at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Jiang Qinghui

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices at all times. The Board believes that good corporate
governance helps the Company to safeguard the interests of its shareholders

and to enhance the performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the financial year ended 31 December 2024, the Company had
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance

Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding directors’
dealings in the Company's securities (the “Own Code"”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries have been made with the
Directors and they have confirmed their compliance with the Own Code and
the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management and control of the Group’s business are vested in
the Board. The Board is responsible for establishing policies, strategies and
plans, providing leadership in creating value and overseeing the Group's

financial performance on behalf of shareholders of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant financial and

operational matters.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group are
delegated to the executive director and senior management of the Company.
Prior to entering into any significant transactions, the executive director and

senior management of the Company have to obtain Board approval.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises eight Directors,
including three Executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Qinghui (Chairman),
Mr. Weng Zudian (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Li Zhonghai; one Non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Lin Shaopeng; and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, Mr. Zhao Yong and
Ms. Wang Yumei. The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out under the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS” on pages 65 to 67 of this annual report.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction to
each newly appointed director on his/her first appointment in order to enable
him/her to have appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and

obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors
are continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. The Company has provided timely technical updates, including
the briefing on the amendments on the Listing Rules and the news release
published by the Stock Exchange to the directors. Continuing briefing and

professional development for directors are arranged where necessary.
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During the year ended 3| December 2024, |12 regular full Board meetings
and 4 general meeting were held and the attendance of each director is set

out as follows:

TRERKRSE

REBEE-Z-_NE+-_A=+—BIFER » B8IT
RAERERESEGEALINREAG  MEBLES
ZHRRSIT

Number of attendance

HIE IR
Board Meetings General Meetings
Name of directors BEEHE E=gex RERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jiang Qinghui EEEEL 12/12 3/4
Mr. Weng Zudian SHEMEE 11712 4/4
Mr. Li Zhonghai (appointed on 12 April 2024) FREEER-FE-MFMAH 6/8 4/4
1+ =HEZEE)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lin Shaopeng MAME S 12/12 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (resigned on 28 February 2025) FRESAE(R-_F_AF_H 12/12 4/4
Z+/\AFHE)
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie B4 12/12 4/4
Mr. Zhao Yong MEBEE 12/12 4/4
Ms. Wang Yumei (appointed on 12 December 2024) ~ & X T (R=F=—mF+=A 0/0 1/
T —HEZE)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

There are two key aspects of the management of the Company — the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group's
business. The Company supports that there should be a clear division of
these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of power and
authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one individual. Currently,
Mr. Jiang Qinghui, the Chairman of the Board and the Executive Director of
the Company, takes up the responsibility of the management of the Board.
Mr. Weng Zudian, the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's

business.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Director
is appointed for a term of twelve-month period which automatically renews
for successive twelve-month periods unless terminated by either party in
writing prior to the expiry of the term. The Non-executive Directors and all
the Independent Non-executive Directors are also subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the annual general

meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms of reference as set
out in the CG Code. As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Weng Zudian, Mr. Zhao Yong and Ms. Wang Yumei. Mr. Weng Zudian is

the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's remuneration policy and
structure and the remuneration packages of directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee

are available on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and adopted, amended

and approved by the Board on 30 December 2022.
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The Remuneration Committee met three times during the year ended 31
December 2024 to review the remuneration packages for directors. The

attendance of each member is set out as follows:

TRERKRSE

REZE_Z_WF+_A=T—BILEFER ' HFHZE
BEBRT-AEE  ELRIESZHFMGE -
BB Z HELENT -

Number of attendance

Name of member REEH HERE
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (resigned on 28 February 2025) BREZLEE(R=ZF=AF = H=+/\HEHT) 33
Mr. Weng Zudian SHEMEE 373
Ms. Wang Yumei (appointed on |2 December 2024) T8 LZ (R -ZFE —pF+ - A+ _—HEZE) 0/0
Mr. Zhao Yong MEBEE 3/3
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of reference as set EEZEZEEBeD i VX8I 2T EZmBESs

out in the CG Code. As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination
Committee comprises two Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, Ms. Wang Yumei
and Mr. Jiang Qinghui. Mr. Jiang Qinghui is the Chairman of the Nomination

Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of directors, evaluation of board composition,
assessment of the independence of independent non-executive directors and
the management of the Board succession. The full terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on Company's website and the Stock

Exchange's website.
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The Nomination Committee met three times during the year ended 31 REBEZT_MAF+-_A=+—HLEFER  EEZ
December 2024 to review the appointment of the directors, the structure, BEBRT-RER  ESLRIZEEST EF9
size and composition of the Board. The attendance of each member is set out ZHE - ABRMEK - BB ZHFERLRENT
as follows:

Number of attendance
Name of member RE &R R
Mr. Jiang Qinghui BEBAL 33
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (resigned on 28 February 2025) BREREE(R=ZFZAF=HA=+/HAFF) 3/3
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie B4 3/3
Ms. Wang Yumei (appointed on 12 December 2024) F#Z T (R=ZF=—WF+ A+ = HEZ(F) 0/0
The Board had adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in September BEHE@ER - ZT—=FNAXRMNEFTERKEZTILEE
2013 and amended by resolutions of the Board passed on 21 October 2019  ([FZHE ) MZBREBRE - —LF+A-+—H

which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board
appointments shall be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. Selection of candidates will be based on range of diversity perspectives,
which would include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee will
monitor the implementation of the Policy and will from time to time review

the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference as set out in
the CG Code. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwok Kim
Hung Eddie, Mr. Zhao Yong and Ms. Wang Yumei. Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the financial
information and reports of the Group and considering any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or external
auditor before submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with and
the terms of appointment of the external auditor and making the relevant
recommendation to the Board; and reviewing the Group’s financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system. The Audit
Committee is also delegated the corporate governance function of the Board
to monitor, procure and manage corporate governance compliance within the
Group. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on

Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

TEER

®E

EVZB 2T EREATHNARENYBEER KK
T URARENS R ERINEREENRL 2
EMERYILERBEAERNEETSREANELEE 2
AT ESNBAZ A 2 AR R AR B R MEESRHEM

MEE MR ARBEZMBRESE - AEPEES
EREBREEHNE BEZZRESTCEMTESSZ
ERERREE  NEE  REREEAKERNZILE

ERERER  BERZBERBEBEZE2XTERNA
NGIDSE e i

The Audit Committee met two times during the year ended 31 December REZ-Z-—NHF+_-_A=+—HILFERX » FZZE
2024 and the attendance of each member is set out as follows: BEeURITIANEE SHEZHFELENT ¢
Number of attendance
Name of member REERE R B
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho (resigned on 28 February 2025) BRESEE(R=ZF=AF = H=+/\HEHT) 212
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie RIS 212
Ms. Wang Yumei (appointed on 12 December 2024) TG T(R=ZF-—WF+ A+ -HAEZ(F) 0/0
Mr. Zhao Yong MEBEEE 212

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee

during the year ended 31 December 2024:
Reviewed and approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the Company’s auditor; and reviewed and made recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of the Company's auditor;

2. reviewed and discussed the Group’s management accounts; and

3. adoption of internal control review report in order to assess the

internal control system of the Group.
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AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 3| December 2024, the auditors of the Company

provided audit and non-audit services to the Company and the Group.

The auditor’s remuneration payable to Confucius International CPA Limited,
in relation to audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December

2024 amounted to HK$ 1,000,000 and HK$NIl respectively.

The auditor’s remuneration payable to Confucius International CPA Limited,
in relation to audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December

2023 amounted to HK$ 1,675,000 and HK$ 150,000 respectively.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 94 to 96.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements of the Company for each financial period with a true and fair
presentation of the financial position of the Group. The Company’s financial
statements are prepared in accordance with all statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
and the related interpretations, adjustments and estimates made are prudent
and reasonable and the financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The Directors are aware of conditions indicating the existence
of material uncertainty related to going concern, and are of the view that
the Group will continue as a going concern for the reasons stated as set
out in the paragraph “The Group's ability to continue as a going concern
basis” under “Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
and Significant Accounting Policies” on pages 106 to 108 of this report. The
statement made by the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the section

headed “Independent Auditor's Report” of this annual report.
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Pursuant to the Code Provision D. 1.3, the Board would like to provide more
details on the Disclaimer of Opinion regarding the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern.

As mentioned in the subsection headed "DETAILS OF AUDIT
QUALIFICATION AND RESPONSE FROM THE COMPANY" in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Auditor has issued a
Disclaimer of Opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 3| December 2024, which arising solely from going concern

issue of the Group.

The net liabilities and net current liabilities of the Group was mainly
attributable to number of reasons, such as high administration expenses and

finance costs, and high-interest rate borrowings of the Group.

The loan borrowings and its interest are still high and this is not easy to solve,
as to obtain low-interest loans from banker are less possible based on the
current financial figures. Therefore, the management of the Group is trying
their best to obtain other financings for other financial institutions, individuals
and potential investors, once concrete proposals or terms are reached,
further announcement (if applicable) will be published as soon as possible. In
addition, the management of the Group is striving to seek more profitable
businesses to increase the Group’s overall revenue and profit to improve
the performance of the Group, and to diversify and expand the Group's

businesses to solve the problem of business concentration.
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The management of the Group is optimistic and confident that the Company
has sufficient working capital for the next twelve months because the
following considerations in addition to the view that Various Measures have
been and/or will be taken to improve the Group's results, working capital and

cashflow:

extending the repayment terms and the expiry date of the Group's
banking facilities by entering into extension agreement with the lender
after the end of the reporting period but before the consolidated
financial statements are authorised for issue. The expiry date of the
banking facilities of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$172786,000), of which RMBI129260,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$139,589,000) was utilised as of 31 December 2024,
secured by the Group's leasehold buildings and leasehold lands under
right-of-use assets due on |3 December 2024 has been extended to 2
December 2026;

2. active cost-saving measures to control operating costs and
administrative costs through various means has been implemented to
improve operating cash flows at a level sufficient to finance the working

capital requirements of the Group; and

3. considering other financing arrangements, if necessary, with a view to

increasing the Group’s equity and liquidity.
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The Audit Committee had critically reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion, the
Management's position concerning the Disclaimer of Opinion and measures
taken by the Group for addressing the Disclaimer of Opinion. The Audit
Committee agreed with the Management’s position based on the reasons as
stated herein. Moreover, the Audit Committee requested the Management to
take all necessary actions to address the impact of the Disclaimer of Opinion
and to strive that such situation leading to the Disclaimer of Opinion would
not happen or be improved in the coming future. The Audit Committee had
also discussed with the Auditor regarding the financial position of the Group,
measures taken and to be taken by the Group, and considered the Auditor’s

rationale and understood their consideration in arriving their opinion.

The Board is of the view that the Proposed Measures are feasible and should
be sufficient to address the Disclaimer of Opinion. Taking into account that
if the Group is able to improve the Group's working capital, cash flow and
financial position in 2024, and assuming there are no other material adverse
effects that will cause the Auditor to issue other disclaimer(s) of opinion,
the Board expects that the Disclaimer of Opinion may be removed in the
next year’s auditor’s report, or at least the financial position will be greatly

improved. The Auditor also holds the same view and basis in this regard.

The annual results of the Group for the Reporting Period have also been

reviewed by the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

In order to establish the duties and responsibilities of the Board in performing
its corporate governance functions, the Board has delegated certain corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee, which include (i) developing
and reviewing policies and practices on corporate governance; (i) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and directors; and (v) reviewing the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibilities for maintaining an adequate system
of internal control to safeguard the Group's assets and shareholders’
interests. An internal control system, including a defined management
structure with limits of authority, is designed to help achieving business
objectives, safeguarding assets against unauthorised use, and maintaining
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use and for publication. The internal control system is set up to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
of financial statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s

objectives.

The Group has a positive attitude to internal controls improvements. For the
purpose of strengthening its existing internal control system, the Company
has appointed an independent professional firm to perform a review of
the Group's selected internal control cycles during the year ended 31
December 2024. The internal control review report has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee. The Group is considering the recommendations
on the deficiencies identified by the independent professional firm and the
recommendations will be followed up on a regular basis and discussed with

the Audit Committee.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board adopted
a Whistleblowing Policy on 30 December 2022. It provides employees and
the relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers,
creditors and debtors) with guidance and reporting channels on reporting
any suspected improprieties in any matters related to the Group directly

addressed to the designated person.

An email account (faithlam@winshine.com) has been set up for this purpose.
All reported matters will be investigated independently and, in the meantime,
all information received from a whistleblower and its identity will be kept
confidential. The Board and the Audit Committee will regularly review the

Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.
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ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy on 30 December 2022.
[t outlines guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all applicable
laws and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption and anti-bribery, the
responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group defend against
corrupt practices and to report any reasonably suspected case of fraud
and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management or through an
appropriate reporting channel. The Group would not tolerate all forms of
fraud and corruption among all employees and those acting in an agency or
fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its business dealing with third
parties. The Board and the Audit Committee will review the Anti-Fraud and
Anti-Corruption Policy and mechanism periodically to ensure its effectiveness
and enforce the commitment of the Group to the prevention, deterrence,

detection and investigation of all forms of fraud and corruption.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Group is Mr. Lam Koon Fai (“Mr. Lam”). Mr.
Lam is a full time employee of the Company who has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company. Mr. Lam has taken no less than |5 hours of the relevant

professional training during the year ended 3| December 2024.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general meeting

According to bye-law 58 of the Company's Bye-laws, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of

the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders, can request

the Company in writing to:

(@)  give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which may

properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting;

(b)  circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to have notice of
any general meeting send to them any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any

proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less than six weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or

not less than one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

director of the Company

According to bye-law 88 of the Company’s Bye-laws, no person other than
a director retiring at the general meeting of the Company shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the office
of director at any general meeting of the Company unless a notice in writing
of the intention to propose such person for election as a director, signed by
a shareholder of the Company (other than the person to be proposed for
election as a director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
of the Company for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed
by such person of his/her willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at
the Company’s head office in Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, TRICOR INVESTOR SERVICES LIMITED (previously
known as Tricor Tengis Limited) provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven days and
the period for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such

general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns in writing
to the Company Secretary of the Company at the Company’s head office in
Hong Kong at Room 9078, 9/F., China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. These include
the annual general meeting, the annual and interim reports, constitutional
documents, notices, announcements and circulars and the Company's website
at www.winshine.com and www.tricor.com.hk/webservice/000209. Information

on the Company's website will be updated from time to time.
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SAN-CHINA

Confucius International

R BEBREGsHENFEHBAAARSS

CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Winshine
Science Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 97 to 234, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory

information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

As explained in note 3.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$73,026,000 for the year ended 3| December 2024. As at the same
date, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
HK$220,257,000 and HK$140,487,000, respectively, and the Group’s bank
balances amounted to approximately HK$55,258,000, in contrast to its borrowings
of approximately HK$217,089,000, which are repayable within the next twelve
months. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast

significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review of the cash
flow forecast of the Group for the next twelve months from the date of this
report and have undertaken a number of measures to improve the Group's
liquidity and financial position which are set out in note 3.1 to the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis on the bases and assumption that the lenders have no
current intention to exercise their right to demand immediate repayment of
the borrowings, the validity of which depends on the outcome of the measures
which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i) the successful negotiations
with the lenders for further renewal of or extension for repayment of those
borrowings which will mature within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period; (i) the successful cost saving measures to improve operating
cash flows of the Group; and (iii) successfully obtaining of additional new sources

of financing as and when needed.

Should the Group fail to achieve the intended effects resulting from the plans and
measures as mentioned in the note 3.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
it might not be able to operate as a going concern, and adjustments would have
to be made to write down the carrying amounts of the Group's assets to their
net realisable amounts, and to provide for any further liabilities that may arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been

reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the going concern basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements has been adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. Up to the date of our report, no agreement or information or
indication of the lender’s current intention for the further renewal of or
extension for repayment of those outstanding corporate bonds and term loans
is available. In this circumstance, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence in relation to the adoption of the going concern basis in preparing

the consolidated financial statements.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™)
issued by HKICPA and to issue an auditor's report. This report is made solely
to you, as a body in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. However,
because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of
our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to

provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (““the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ho Pak Tat

Practising Certificate Number: P052 15
Hong Kong

31 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
melEmRk

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_R_WE+-_RA=t+-HLEE
2024 2023
—B-mEF —F-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE TRET FET
Revenue 'ON 5 515,908 523262
Cost of sales SHE AR (503,105) (483,996)
Gross profit EX 12,803 39,266
Other income, gains and losses EAUA -~ Ui R EE 6 7,307 10,300
Reversal of expected credit loss for loan EWER 2 B EEEE
receivables 7 - 600
(Provision) reversal of expected credit loss FEWE 5518 2 FEEAE B R ()
for trade receivables ELE 7 (574) 3,273
Provision of expected credit loss for EAbfEGRIE 2 TBEIE B BB A S
other receivables 7 (4,558) -
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - BERRERESE
equipment (9,682) -
Impairment loss on right of use assets REEE 2 RERE (2,088) -
Impairment of goodwill EERE (740) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZEE 33 (1,563) -
Selling and distribution costs $HE R SHR AN (4,793) (1,608)
Administrative expenses THFS (44,503) (53,752)
Gain arising from changes in fair value EMEERBEREEKNNESD)
less costs to sell of biological assets A2 W= - I3
Other operating expenses HAb RS (2,862) (5,503)
Finance costs BhE R 8 (18,184) (15,587)
Loss before tax MRBRIEE (69,437) (22,998)
Income tax expense Frigsix 9 (4,325) (6363)
Loss for the year REEEE 10 (73,762) (29,361)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTEBBEAREERSE :
Owners of the Company KATEBA (73,026) (28,650)
Non-controlling interest (“NCI”) eI RS ([ R RS ) (736) (711)
(73,762) (29.361)
Restated
Loss per share BRER 14 K5
Basic and diluted EARNEE (HK56.4 cents) (HK31.8 cents)
(56.474l1) (31.874L)
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REeEsERkHEMEZEKAR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-Z-WE+-A=t-RItEE
2024 2023
—ZTgE —E=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FTHET THET
Loss for the year rEEER (73,762) (29,361)
Other comprehensive income (expense) HttzmEkE(BEX)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or @S A Bz 2 HH -
loss:
Gain (loss) on revaluation of properties Y2 E (G (B 1E) 4,364 (1,114
Deferred tax credit arising from MEEMES CRLETIEE R
revaluation of properties 28 - 2,220
4,364 1,106
Items that may be/have been reclassified Al BRA#EEIAEm o HE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of ~ REGINEIFEA 2 I R ZERE
foreign operations (1,630) 3321
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HE M B A RIE BRBRIE A 8
of subsidiaries 533 -
(1,097) 3321
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEZEE
for the year 3,267 4427
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ AFE2HEBI AL (70,495) (24934)
Total comprehensive expense UTEBEEAFERMBA A
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KATEBA (69,860) (24,227)
NCI FERER (635) (707)
(70,495) (24934)

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BEMRRE

At 31 December 2024

RZZE-ZME+=A=+—H

2024 2023
—E-IEF ZEZ=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
e FHExT THT
Non-current assets FEREBEE

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB RERE 15 93,929 115,364
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 3,348 6,150
Rental deposit Heke 21 146 l64
Goodwil Bl 34 = 740
97,423 122,418

Current assets RBEE
Inventories e /8 79,009 75,142
Biological assets EMEE 19 - 832
Trade receivables JEUNE 5 5/IA 20 103,334 70,482
Loan receivables JEURE TR 17 = -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — TEfFRIR -« 2@ R H A0 FEWGRIA 21 17,856 26,116
Bank balances and cash RITER MRS 22 55,258 119,335
255,457 291,907

Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade payables JENE S8 23 204,624 170,541
Other payables and accruals Hih e IE R EETE R 24 46,326 59,423
Contract liabilities GHEE 25 722 1,154
Borrowings B 26 217,089 238,097
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 1,090 1,529
Tax payables FERIIE 5,863 3,871
Convertible bonds RRES 29 - 2476
475714 477,091
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEmBARR TR

At 31 December 2024
R-B-_WE+-—A=+-H

2024 2023

—EPE —EC=F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

Mt FTER FET

Net current liabilities REBEEEE (220,257) (185,184)

Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAR (122,834) (62,766)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Lease liabilities HERRE 27 1,384 1,858

Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 28 16,269 16,245

17,653 18,103

Net liabilities aEEE (140,487) (80869)
Capital and reserves BARF#E

Share capital [N 30 1,454 5,098

Deficit B4t (140,492) (85,153)

Capital deficiency attributable to RABIER AEIEEREA

owners of the Company (139,038) (80,055)

NCI FEERE S (1,449) 814)

Capital deficiencies =N (140,487) (80,869)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 234 were approved and R FI7TELB4EFAPBBREREIN T _AF =
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2025 and are signed =T~ AEEEEHAERRETE - YH THNEEK

on its behalf by: REE
JIANG Qinghui WENG Zudian
EEE Eopiki
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITEE

100 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
RERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_R_WE+-_RA=t+-HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATREAES
Issued Asset  Statutory  Convertble  Exchange
share Share  revaluation reserve  bond equity  fluctuation  Accumulated Capital
capital premium reserve fund reserve reserve losses Total NCI deficiency
B&f7 kit (3 EE  TRRES EX
RA EE  EffEE  REES  BERE  RBRE  ZEB BE FEREE  E4EH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TRn  TETL  TER  TEr TR TEn  TEr TR TEn  TEx
(Note)
)
At | January 2023 RZZZ=F-A-H 3661 - 57684 14318 - 159 (188902) (89,648) - (89,648)
Loss for the year RERRIE - - - - - - (8650 (28650) oy 930
Other comprehensive income AEEEMRENE
for the year - - 1,106 - - 3317 - 445 4 4477
Totel comprehensie (expense)  AFE2E (AR WRLE
income for the year - - 1,106 - - 3317 (28650) (24227) (707) (249349
Revaluation reserve realised SR ERER - - (2.706) - - - 2706 - - -
Issue of convertible bonds EORED o - - - - 124 - - 24 - 124
Conversion of convertle bonds AT AR5 AR
into shares 1436 33717 - - (1) - - 336% - 36%
Acquistion of subsidries YEIBAT - - - - - - - - (107 (107
Appropriation to BRTIEREES
statutory reserve fund - - - 9 - - %) - - -
At 31 December 2023 RZEZZFTZA=1-8 509 37 56084 14410 7 26907 (214938) (80055) (814) (80869)
Loss for the year TFEER - - - - = - (Boe) (130 me) (1)
Other comprehensive income AEEEMRENE
for the year = = 4364 = - (1,198) - 3,166 1ol 3267
Total comprehensive (expense) RERRE (R WaER
income for the year 509 03 60448 14410 I 25709 (287.964)  (14991) (1449 (151,364)
Revaluation reserve realised SR ERER = = (2852 = = = 285 = = =
Issue of convertble bonds KrmaRES = = = = = = = = = =
Share reduction TRipHI, (4894) - - - - - 48%4 - - -
Issue of share kb 1,250 9,627 = - = = = 10877 - 10877
Lapse of convertible bonds AEREFEN - - - - U] - 7 - - -
Appropriztion to BRTIEREES
statutory reserve fund = = = 539 - - (539) - - -
At 31 December 2024 et o 1,454 4,004 57,5% 14949 - 25709 (280750 (139,038) (1449 (140.487)

Note: The Group's subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") are required
to allocate at least 10% of net profit according to their PRC audited financial
statements to a statutory reserve fund until the balance of such reserve has reached
50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. Any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory reserve fund shall only be used for making up losses or for capitalisation
into share capital, provided that the remaining balance is not less than 20% of the
registered capital of the entity after such capitalisation.

Wiz -

AEMPEARAMB([HE]DMBARRAE DS
HiREHBEEERM BRI 0% D BEEEERE
HEE  BEERFEHEREDINE R A EMEAR#50%
A1E o AN A AL B R AR B OME R
SRABNRBHER  RERCBER - EHRBEAT

EERBE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

2024 2023
—BoRE —F-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
izt Ti#n THET
Operating activities REXK
Loss before tax BRI R (69,437) (22998)
Adjustments for: 5%
Finance costs B R A 18,184 15,587
Interest income FBHA 6 (25) (40)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE - BERRENE 15 11,737 11452
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRERENE 16 1,453 1,696
Gain on disposal of interests of associates kSN 6 _ (2:480)
(Gain) loss on deregistration of a subsidiary EUBERMELR (W) BE 6 242 1,095
Gain arising from change in fair value less costs to sell EMEREZ DAERBENTEBHESLN
of biological assets Yega = (13)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEkFE (&) BB 6
equipment (218) 205
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment W%  BERREREER 9,682 _
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRERENESE 2,088 _
Impairment of goodwill HERE 740 -
Reversal of expected credit loss for EUER BREEEEED
loan receivables 7 - (600)
Provision (reversal) of expected credit loss for trade BB HF0E 2 RAEEFEEAE(BE)
receivables 7 574 (3.273)
Provision of expected credit loss for other receivable Hit W IER A EEEREE 7 4,558 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZEE 33 1,563 -
Write down of inventories, net FEMR - 38 4,683 5449
Effect of unrealised foreign exchange rate changes AELREREH I FE 9,575 1,097
Operating cash flows before movements in EELCRPACLERERE
working capital (4,601) 1177
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE(EM)FHD (10,250) 256
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables FENE SFIECE )RS (33,438) 4,294
Decrease (increase) in prepayments, deposits and ARFUE - %e REMEREERD ()
other receivables 2,286 (12,380)
Decrease (increase) in biological assets EMEERD (M) 805 (737)
Increase in trade payables [ERE 5 IR 37,765 35,135
Decrease in other payables and accruals Hith TR R EBRRE S (17,849) (15,786)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD (423) (388)
Cash used in operations BEMRARSE (25,705) 17,571
Income tax paid BFEH (1,912) (8,084)
Net cash used in operating activities REXBMARSTH (27,617) 9,487

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_R_WE+-_RA=t+-HLEE

2024 2023
12 —F-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it TERT TAT
Investing activities REED
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEKERAE 15 (9,507) (13,103)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE - BERRXEFAEHE 4719 210
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZRE R FE 33 (1,150) =
Receipts of loan receivables B EF AR R - 600
Interest received BUIFIS 25 40
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WENBARZRERAEE 34 - [
Net cash used in investing activities REZBRARL TR (5.913) (12252)
Financing activities RETH
Proceeds from borrowings SHFERE 353,802 440,082
Repayment of borrowings BRER (372,549) (390421)
Interest paid BRFIE (12.979) (11949)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERRE (1,345) (2,085)
Proceeds from issue of shares BIR M PTIS VR 10,877 -
Repayment of convertible bonds BRITBRRES (2,500) -
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BTRARESAER = 36,300
Net cash generated from financing activities METBRERSTFE (24,694) 71927
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEMAD)EMBEE (58,224) 69,162
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year RENZRBERBELZEY 119,335 49765
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes BB 8 (5,853) 408
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, RELZRERBLEEYN KRBT
represented by bank balances and cash #EHRES 55,258 119,335
Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents BERBELENERIN
Bank balance and cash RITREARRRE 55,258 119,335
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section to the annual
report. The Company's shares are listed on The Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the Group's annual period beginning on | January 2024 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Amendments to HKAS | Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Noncurrent and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
Amendments to HKAS | Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs 2.

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification and
and HKAS 7 Measurement of Financial Instruments’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards — Volume | I
Amendments to HKAS 2| Lack of Exchangeability’
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2025.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2026.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2027.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

ARE M EmRME
2 =] ,E\ i
For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern basis

The Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
its consolidated financial statements. The Group incurred a net
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$73,026,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024. As at the
same date, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$220,257,000 and HK$140,487,000 respectively.
The Group'’s bank balances and cash amounted to approximately
HK$55,258,000 in contrast to its borrowings of approximately
HK$217,089,000, which are repayable within the next twelve

months.

These conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern and therefore, the Group may not be able to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of

its business.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)
The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern basis
(Continued)

In order to improve the Group's financial position, the directors of

the Company have been implementing various measures as follows:

completed the issue of 9,400,000 ordinary shares of 0.0
each for cash at the net issue price of HK$0.14 per new
share under the general mandate giving rise to net proceeds
of HK$1,200,000 on 28 January 2025;

extending the repayment terms and the expiry date of
the Group's banking facilities by entering into extension
agreement with the lender after the end of the reporting
period but before the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue. The expiry date of the banking
facilities of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$172,786,000), of which RMB129,260,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$139,589,000) was utilised as of 31
December 2024, secured by the Group's leasehold buildings
and leasehold lands under right-of-use assets due on 13
December 2024 has been extended to 2 December 2026;

active cost-saving measures to control operating costs
and administrative costs through various means has been
implemented to improve operating cash flows at a level
sufficient to finance the working capital requirements of the

Group; and

ma

(%)

3.1

e BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MF+_RA=+t-ALEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-ZT-
3.

MET-A=t-BHLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)
The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern basis

(Continued)

V. considering other financing arrangements, if necessary, with a

view to increasing the Group's equity and liquidity.

On the basis of the above considerations and taking into account
the above measures, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months from the date of issuance of these consolidated financial

statements and accordingly, these consolidated financial statements

have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for biological assets which are measured
at their fair value less costs to sell and, certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or

fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS16 and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in

HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best

use.
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e BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HREVBBRRZGHREEREESBUR

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#&)

(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements 3. HREVEBRZGHEE(E)
(Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements UhoOh - RMBWMEMS - AREFERE
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which AREFENHASBEITBERERAAE
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and AERNBABBYARBNEZUSER
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its F—H - BRKE=H  FEAT

entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active . E—RBWAHBRERBNGERAH
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can A LAERIG I AE R B E sk B B RS R
access at the measurement date; MSHREB(REFHE):

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included . BE_RWANEBEAREENEEER
within Level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, EoEEM AT BRRNRABIR(E—
either directly or indirectly; and FABEORERIN : R

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or . F=PRMABEREEXBENT
liability. AR ABUR o

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FEFFTEEHEIIMT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more

of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the

Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

B
(%)

3.2

e BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-T-mET-ASt-ALEE
MEBRCEREEREEGHEE
EREHBEEN
mERE

RAMBRR BB AR B RARE]ATEF
ERNEMBRARZMBRER - RAAFAR
THER T A EHIE -

- AHEREHRITEED

- HRBEZ2EREHRHAEDHKA
ERBRAFEEN Rk

« BRNNEENFEHDR -

WBEEE BN Ll =TBEHIE R

BRI N EHBRES - AIAKEEEN

HHEEREEHREE R HIEGIE

B 8 2 B AN SR B ERAS S I B 8 R
R G A AR - WAL R KL
BABMES L ILRE AR © 55l
2 RFERKRBREENRERRNKAR
F S B AN S B ES B A Rl H) B
EEEAEETHEENHBERARZB LR
mAEBRLEMEEKER AR

MEE - BEnMERR 2 WBHmKEDL
HE EHESEFREREAEE TR
EH—% -

g*\\
Mz

2B T

SERNRBIBZABEEEREE -
WA - AZREAEEKEAFER
SHBzReRECRGEAEERS
i o

N?i

DH

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
—E-mEER

111



112

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amounts of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary, that is reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of

the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset

or group of similar identifiable assets.

The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the
effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the

set of activities and assets is determined not to be a business and no

further assessment is needed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such

a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which includes
an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired processes
are considered substantive if they are critical to the ability to
continue producing outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform the
related processes or they significantly contribute to the ability to
continue producing outputs and are considered unique or scarce or
cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the

ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally

recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
3.2 Materi

Busine.

al accounting policy information (Continued)

ss combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and

HKAS |9 Employee Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

at the acquisition date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in

accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS
|6 Leases) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the lease
term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date; or (b)
the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable

terms of the lease when compared with market terms.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is

recognhised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling

interests are measured at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arises from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at

the acquisition date.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the

corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group'’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (ie. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed

directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see above),
and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts

recognised at that date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the

accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s CGUs (or groups of CGUs) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal

management purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a
prorata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit

(or group of CGUEs).
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the
group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the CGU (or a
CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained, unless the Group can demonstrate that

some other method better reflects the goodwill associated with the

operation disposed of.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified

impairment loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operation policy decisions of the investee but is not

control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Change in net assets of the associate other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the

period in which the investment is acquired.

mE
(%&)

3.2

e BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_R_WE+-_RA=t+-HLEE

MBERRZEREEREEGHEE

EREHBEEN(E)
RBERAHRE

e
T

ARAKEHERAEEARENL
c BAREBNESERBEHRMBR
BZ FRENRES - BHZEFBRTE

i
L\)

\r
’

i3
W oEE

L
o

o
Het

BERNRNES BEENABERAERES
Rt ARAM B RE - REEDE - R
B DB 2 RE VTR ARER A MR

MRER - RRIELFE L‘Mﬁwzﬁm@
DiEBE ARz BaMEMEE K E

BamhkEMEEKE - BERF @ﬁ%
ZEPTEAR  BRIFFREHEHAE
BB A EESEZAER® - BEX

SERGERBEQRZEBERBHAKRER
ZENE RS (BREMRSNES
Mz AEEEE CERAEENZE 2
RAIZWEFBE &) AIAEERKIE
BREERZE—FEE - BINBERZE
RERRAEECDELZ TR MEE TS
REZBERFNFA -

REERBZRETBREHRKBHE
NEE BEZEIRAEARR - WEREZER

AZIRER  ZRERABHAEE RN
ZIREHRZABHNEERBBEAREF
B EABENERREE At ARKE
BZEHEE ANEBEEEABNEER
BEZAREREBOZRERANZ ZH
(BEH)NWBEZIRE 2 HIR IS NE S

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
—E-mEER

119



120

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
ME+—A=t—-ALFEE

BE-ZC

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognhised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the

relevant associate.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the

Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to

the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or

services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

. the Group'’s performance creates and enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of

time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract

are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group

is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service

before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

Planting, cultivation and sale of agricultural produce and distribution

of fruits

Revenue from planting, cultivation and sale of agricultural produce
and distribution of fruits is recognised at a point in time when
control of the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Planting, cultivation and sale of agricuftural produce and distribution

of fruits (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due. It is
the Group’s policy to sell its products to end customers with a right

of return within the date of products delivered.

The management'’s judgements regarding principal and agent
consideration in revenue recognition was disclosed in note 4 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception of the contract. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of

the contract are subsequently changed.

me
(%)

3.2

e BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MF+_RA=+t-ALEE

MBBRZEHREEREEGTHE
EREHBEEN(E)
EFEHUA (#)

E
(&)

CEEREEREMARD HAKR

AEETEERRINEHEREKKIE - B
HEREREREDN  AREEREFE
PR - REENERRR @ MRETPH
EFWH EREREEMXNAHAR

EREERAREFHEZEARRKEAR
EW%%EE%E%%%%W%W@§°
HE

AEERAHORERREBVBREE]
FIRATZEBRTHANETERARS
BEME - FRIFENZIRRRIGHERE
g - \Wﬁ%é%%$?i%ﬁﬁ°

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
—E-mEER

123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

3.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group applies
practical expedient not to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for the lease component and

any associated non-lease components as a single lease component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably expects
that the effects on the financial statements would not differ

materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of staff quarters that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the
Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date
of the lease (ie. the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-
of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are

presented within “investment properties”.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term is depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and

the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Leasehold land and building

For payments of a property interest which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is presented as
property, plant and equipment of the Group when the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and building

elements.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” ("HKFRS 9") and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered
as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use

assets.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is

not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less

any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;
. amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees;
. the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to

be exercised by the Group; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease

term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

ma

(%)

3.2

e BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MF+_RA=+t-ALEE

MBERRZEREEREEGHEE

EREHBEEN(E)
HE(E)

NEBERFEBA(E)

Mkt

i

B8

REERBEAS  AEEZRREBHK
XN zBEMNRzRERRRTERER
& - REFERENFRZRER - HEER
EXMNEEEARZEE @ MAKEERR
HEMIG M2 BEERMEK -

§

MENKEHE

- BEEMNR(BEREBEEEMNR)RE
EKHEER

« EREEEMETEEENRK

« FHREEEFRTOEBEMNKEA

c ARESEBERSTITEIEERERE
BREZITER &

« R IEBENISR(MESRRR
RANEREITERAKLEHEE) -

RSB - BEAERER NS RE

ERA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
—E-mEER

127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding

adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised

lease payments using the initial discount rate.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding

the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone

price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease payments
as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies the
practical expedient to remeasure the lease liabilities by discounting
the revised lease payments using the unchanged discount rate and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets.
A lease modification is required by interest rate benchmark reform

if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

. the modification is necessary as a direct consequence of

interest rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis

immediately preceding the modification).

Taxation

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease

liabilities.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance

lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at commencement date at amounts equal to net
investments in the leases, measured using the interest rate implicit in
the respective leases. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred
by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the initial
measurement of the net investments in the leases. Interest income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect

of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term except for investment properties measured under fair

value model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

The Group applies HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15") to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative

stand-alone selling prices.
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments from

lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through forgiveness

or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease

as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land premiums’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over

the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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3.

MET-A=t-BHLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,

and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,

are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

3.

mRa

(%)

3.2

MBBRZEHREEREEGTRE
EESHBEENE)
s

RREEERN KRB BRI EHREE - A
ZERBNEEEUINEE(IMNE) ETT
R ZIENR 5 ANRITEERER - NH|
FHR - UONEEHER BB IEB THRN %
BHRITERSMME - RAIMNEFHER
AREIRNIFEEHBREE AN EE
BHRITEREMRE - RINEE LKA
AENIFERIEE T TENRE -

EHTBEREERENHRERELANEL =
HEELEHERNETPER -

EFGEMBHREAME - AEBEXEBEH
BENBBEREREPRATERRER
AEEMENNEH(ANET)  MEKKIEA
BIRBAAFHEXGE - HHAEXRHIR
BEXRERSN - ERERT - BIRARS

RHERMER - TELEYZRE(INA)
BREA 2 E SR AR N R B A
HEREEPRA -

EEAA
ERERARELREANERED®E
=7 5

270N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to them and the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related

assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are presented under

"Other income, gains and losses”.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme"”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme and are recognised as an expense when

employees have rendered services entitling them to the contribution

payable.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain amounts for the employees in the
PRC, pursuant to the local municipal government regulations. The

contributions are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered services entitling them to the contribution.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are

recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits

the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as

wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any

amount already paid.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of

the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to

accumulated losses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred

income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of the transaction dose not

give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property

over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for

the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold land
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost or fair value less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment measured using revaluation model

The Group performs revaluations of the properties with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at the

reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognise in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation

surplus is transferred to accumulated losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on

a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets
are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established.
The recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant

cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the impairment loss

is treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss

is treated as a revaluation increase under that standard.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sale.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect

of the time value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
I5. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that
at the date of initial application of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which

HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as

FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other

gains and losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, loan
receivables, other receivables, deposits and bank balances and cash).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix with

appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-Z-WE+-A=t-RItEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk
of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of

‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held

by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_Z_WE+-_A=t+-HLHFE
3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. SRAUBBRRZGREEREESHEE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (%)
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 32 EESTTBEERE)
Financial instruments (Continued) THTEAEE)
Financial assets (Continued) CREE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREBERRBEE)
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (iy EEREMNTMEE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;
(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

(¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MF+_RA=+t-ALEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HREVBBRRZGHREEREESTBUR

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (&)
(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 30 EEEHBERERE)
Financial instruments (Continued) EHIAGE)
Financial assets (Continued) eRMEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) CREEMNREE)
(V) Write-off policy (v) HSEECR
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is FEBREEHMERARSHFER
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe ERE Y% E B mERIRIE AT s (]
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of MZSEFEETEENEARE
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been BF  ApERESIHEME - &
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy ERcEABBBME  URT
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the BEERE)MHEEMEE - MHZ
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs eRMEENIREAREBKEREF
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject RERBERERE R BRI -
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery W SH R —IHAR LR o A E
procedures, taking into account legal advice where WEIFRIBRERER

appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) TEHIEEEBENTZERER
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability EHEEBENAEDEORE
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the BROEBEX(NEQEXERNRE
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The ) REH R KB o BHOPER
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default BABBEREBELAELENBR
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking EREBBETG - BHEEE
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and BHmGTREUNEEN S BENR
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the i 1E 7 DN RE BB T 7 °E A9 M IR B 3
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. ESFE o
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual —mE  EEEEEEBARES
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with HAENEAEENFEEOR €M HE
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to REBETEBMGRIHIE 2R E 2 MHE
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined WER  THRNTHEAREENE
at initial recognition. PRAZBEIR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A &
=R E S B R
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-Z-WE+-A=t-RItEE
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (#%&)

REMBBRRZBREEREZSTHE

(Continued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 32 EBESHBERERE)
Financial instruments (Continued) AT AE)
Financial assets (Continued) CREE(HE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREBERREE)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued) (v BEHREEBBENGERERE)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on

the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
and other receivables are each assessed as a separate
group. Loans receivables are assessed for expected

credit losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar

credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on

amortised cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in
a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

Specifically:

. For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the '‘Other
gains and losses’ line item (note 6) as part of the net foreign

exchange gains/(losses);

. For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part
of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences
on the amortised cost of the debt instrument are recognised
in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and losses’ line item
(note 6) as part of the net foreign exchange gains/(losses).
As the foreign currency element recognised in profit or
loss is the same as if it was measured at amortised cost, the
residual foreign currency element based on the translation
of the carrying amount (at fair value) is recognised in other
comprehensive income in the fair value through other

comprehensive income/revaluation reserve;

. For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and losses' line
item as part of the gain/(loss) from changes in fair value of

financial assets (note 6);

. For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the fair value through other comprehensive income/

revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments which include no contractual obligation for
the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or the Group has
the sole discretion to defer payment of distribution and redemption

of principal amount indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade payables and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company's own

equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component (including
any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is estimated by
measuring the fair value of similar liability that does not have an

associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting
the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the
compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included
in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option classified as equity
will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
share capital. Where the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the

conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the

convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency
and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based
on the amortised cost of the instruments. These foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the ‘Other gains and losses’ line
item in profit or loss (note 6) as part of net foreign exchange gains/
(losses) for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship. For those which are designated as a hedging
instrument for a hedge of foreign currency risk, foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in a separate component of equity.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the
spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities
that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component
forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in
profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated

hedging relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group'’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as a
result of interest rate benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
of a financial asset or financial liability to which the amortised
cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to account for
these changes by updating the effective interest rate, such change
in effective interest rate normally has no significant effect on the

carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
is required by interest rate benchmark reform if and only if, both

these conditions are met:

. the change is necessary as a direct consequence of interest

rate benchmark reform; and

. the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the basis

immediately preceding the change).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

32

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Biological assets

Biological assets are the growing crops of the Group on the
cultivation bases. Biological assets are measured at fair value less
costs to sell on initial recognition and at the end of each reporting
period. The fair value of biological assets is determined based on
the current market price with reference to the species, growing

condition, cost incurred and expected yield of the crops.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at fair value less costs
to sell at the time of harvest. The fair value of agricultural produce
is determined based on market prices in the local market. The fair
value less costs to sell at the time of harvest is deemed as the cost

of agricultural produce for further processing.

The gain or loss arising on initial recognition of biological assets at
fair value less costs to sell and from a change in fair value less costs
to sell of biological assets shall be included in profit or loss for the

period in which it arises.

mE
(%)

3.2
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements.

Going concern considerations

The assessment of the going concern assumption involves making a
judgment by the directors of the Company, at a particular point of time,
about the future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The directors of the Company consider that the Group has the
ability to continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively may

cast doubts about the going concern assumption are set out in note 3.1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Principal and agent consideration in revenue recognition

The Group engaged in sales of toy products business or sales of its own

planted fruits, which involves the principal versus agent assessment.

The Group is required to determine whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself
(i.e, the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to
be provided by the other party (i.e., the Group is an agent). In determining
the nature of its promise, the Group identify the specified goods to be
provided to the customer (which, for example, could be a right to a good
to be provided by another party, and assess whether it controls each

specified good before that good or service is transferred to the customer).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recognised revenue
relating to the sales of toy products and agricultural products amounted to
HK$514,023,000 and HK$ 1,885,000 respectively.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2024, no deferred tax asset (3| December 2023:
nil) in relation to unused tax losses for an operating subsidiary has been
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the other tax losses of
the subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC of HK$271,347,000 (2023:
HK$224,550,000) and RMB757,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$818,000) (2023: RMB6,649,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,337,000)) respectively due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits generated are less or more than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation,
a material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a

reversal or further recognition takes place.
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BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurement and valuation processes of the leasehold

buildings

The leasehold buildings are stated at revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation in the consolidated statement of financial position at the end
of each reporting period as disclosed in note |15. The revalued amount has
been based on a valuation on the buildings conducted by an independent
firm of professional valuer using property valuation techniques which

involve certain assumptions of market conditions.

In estimating the revalued amount of the Group’s leasehold buildings,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are available.
Where Level | inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation of the Group's
leasehold buildings. At the end of each reporting period, the management
of the Group works closely with the qualified external valuer to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level
2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The management of the Group
first considers and adopts Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from
observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are
not available, the Group adopts valuation techniques that include Level 3
inputs. Where there is a material change in the revalued amount of the
leasehold buildings, the causes of the fluctuations are reported to the
board of directors of the Company. Changes to assumptions and inputs
would result in changes in the revalued amount of the Group's leasehold
buildings and corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss

reported in other comprehensive income.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the revalued amount of the Group's leasehold buildings are disclosed in

note 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
revenue and operating costs. Changes in these estimates could have a
significant impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result in
additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.
The carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets as at the end of the reporting period are HK$93,929,000 and
HK$3,348,000 (2023: HK$ 115,364,000 and HK$6,150,000) respectively.

The management of the Group has assessed and concluded that the
Group has classified 2 CGUs for impairment assessment purpose, which
is based on the nature of business and smallest identifiable group of assets
of the Group, that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cashflows from other assets or groups of assets, namely (i) Toys (as
defined in note 5) and (ii) Agricultural products (as defined in note 5).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has performed
impairment assessment on the CGU in Toys with impairment indicator as
this segment is the only source of revenue stream for the Group and has
been incurring loss for 2 consecutive years.

For the purpose of impairment assessment, the management of the Group
estimated the recoverable amounts for property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets allocated to the CGU in Toys with carrying amounts of
HK$99,682,000 and HK$5,172,000, respectively as at 31 December 2024.

The recoverable amounts (other than the leasehold buildings, which is
under revaluation model) have been determined based on value in use
calculation. That calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering a five-year period, and pre-
tax discount rate of 13.7%, determined by using Capital Asset Pricing Model.
The value in use calculations were determined by an independent valuer.
The revenue for the next five years are projected using an average growth
rate of 5% per annum which does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations included budgeted sales and gross margins and their related
cash inflows and outflows patterns, estimated based on the units' historical
performance and management’s expectation of the market development.

Based on the impairment assessment and the value in use calculation,
impairment losses of HK$9,682,000 and HK$2,088000 have been
recognised against the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, respectively. Other than the leasehold buildings
under property, plant and equipment, which is using revaluation model with
estimated fair value less costs of disposal (using depreciated replacement
cost valuation technique, as disclosed in note 15(d)), the impairment losses
have been allocated to each category of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, such that the carrying amount of each category of
these assets is not reduced below the highest of its respective value in use
or zero.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_WE+-_A=t+-HLHFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an assessment of the
net realisable value of inventories. Allowances are applied to inventories
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable
value is lower than cost. The management of the Group reviewed the
inventory ageing report at the end of the reporting period to identify
inventories that are no longer saleable in the market and estimated the net
realisable value for those items based primarily on the latest invoice prices

and current market conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, write down of inventories of
HK$4,683,000 (2023: HK$5,449,000) was charged to profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of the Group's inventories is
HK$79,009,000 (2023: HK$75,142,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECL as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires the use of the lifetime
ECL for all trade receivables. The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Management reassesses the provision at each balance

sheet date.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 20 and 36(b).

As at 31 December 2024, the gross carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$105,083,000 (2023: HK$71,657,000), and the provision of ECL is
HK$ 1,749,000 (2023: provision of ECL is HK$1,175,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for loan receivables

Impairment of loan receivables is assessed on |2m ECL basis when there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowances will be based on the lifetime ECL. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, general
conditions, internal credit ratings and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.

The information about the ECL and the Group's loan receivables are
disclosed in notes |7 and 36(b), respectively.

As at 31 December 2024, the gross carrying amount of loan receivables
is HK$16,126,000 (2023: HK$16,126,000), and the provision of ECL is
HK$16,126,000 (2023: HK$16,126,000).

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS

Revenue represents revenue arising on sale of toy products and sales of
agricuftural products for the year. The revenue relates to revenue from
contracts with customers which is within the scope of HKFRS 5. All
revenue is recognised at a point in time upon delivery of the goods to

customers.

The Group manufactured toy products in accordance with the
performance obligations as set out in each sales contracts with its
customers. The performance obligations in sales contracts have an
original expected duration of one year or less. The Group has applied
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 and hence information about the
Group's remaining performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially
satisfied) as of the end of the reporting period is not disclosed. The Group
recognised the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense
when incurred since the amortisation period of the asset that the Group

otherwise would have recognised was one year or less.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_WE+-_A=t+-HLHFE

5.  REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5. WARKRESE(E)
2024 2023
—EE —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Revenue from sales of toy products KB HETTEEmRZ A 514,023 522,827
Revenue from sales of agricultural products REEERERZBA 1,885 435
515,908 523262
The Group is organised and its businesses are managed by divisions, which REFIRFPHLI DO REBEER » DERER
are a mixture of both business lines and geographical locations. Information ERHIEBMNERNAEES - HAATHITES
reported internally to the executive directors of the Company, being the (A BLERE AN ENTRENBIEDEE
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resources allocation EREREE BN ERRAS SRR E
and performance assessment of segment performance focuses on types R RIEHER - AEBE 25 N WE T 2R
of goods delivered or services provided. The Group has presented the DHE o BHANEETH T LM HIER I ES G
following two reportable segments. No operating segments have been LR ERSHE o
aggregated in arriving at the following reportable segments of the Group.
Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as ERIR  AEBREE S EREREDEHE Y
follows: A2EHEHFWT -
Toys: this segment derives its revenue from manufacturing for sales A OB A REEERISEDA -
of toys.
2. Agricultural products: this segment derives its revenue from planting 2. BEDZSEI WA EERE N E 2
agricultural products for sale. B o
The chief operating decision maker monitors the results, assets and FTELBRBEAFUTEEERZ (@A SRS
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases: ME(R 7 %8 - BEREE -
All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than refundable ﬁﬁﬁ BEDHBREAS®HOME - A ER K
deposits, certain property, plant and equipment, certain prepayments ETYYE  HMERDR 1% EFIEMNZER
and certain bank balances and cash, which are grouped as unallocated ?fiﬁ MDA (BREARDROLEE)
corporate assets. AN o
WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than certain

accruals, which are grouped as unallocated corporate liabilities.

Segment (loss) profit before tax excludes unallocated interest income and
unallocated corporate expenses which are not directly attributable to the

business activities of any operating segment.
(@)  Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by

reportable segments:

For the years ended 3| December 2024 and 2023

e BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MF+_RA=+t-ALEE

WARKES (&)
FERBEEAKRERERNE - S TEE
RBER/RDEEEAREIGRN -

BERADBR(BR)ENTERETERRBRE
MREN B KB EE R D ECH B WA KK
DELERX -

(@) DEWA  %£&  BEEREE
INTRIZAIZHROBE D 2 AEBIKRAR
EEDH -

HE—Z-_MER-T-=F+-A=+

—BIEFE
Toys Agricultural products Total
n& REm by
2024 2023 2024 203 2024 2023

ZECME ZTo=F “ECMF ZTCoF ZECRE ZTC-=F

HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$000  HKSO00  HK$000  HK$O00
tEr TAT TEx TAR  TEx  TEn

Reportable segment revenue AEHRABRA

Revenue from external customers RENMEZPZHA 514023 522807 1,885 4$5 515908 523262
Reportable segment loss before tax PEECE b (44,504) (7260) (3515) (3338) (48019  (10600)
Unallocated corporate income RABEERA 429 1984
Unallocated corporate expenses FARLERT (21.847) (14382
Loss before tax BRAIEE (69437)  (22998)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
ME+—A=t—-ALFEE

BE-ZT-
L,

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

(@)

5. WARGESE(A)
Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () DEWA %4  SERAEE)
Toys Agricultural products Unallocated Total
7 BER AR &5t
2004 03 2024 03 2024 003 2024 003
CECRE C%o-F CECRE CTo-F CECRF CFCF CEORF CTCF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKSO00  HK$000  HK$000  HK§'000  HK$000
TEn TEr  TEr TR TEr  TER  TER  TEn
Other segment informetion (ncuded inthe measure - £ AEEK Gr AN EBE
of segment profit or loss or segment assets) HEAEHE)
Depreciaton of property, plant and equipment 0% BEREENE (10662 (10905) (999) (540) () o LBy (14
Deprecition of right-of-use asets fFREEE NE o4 (154) (486) (14 ) 137 (453 (16%)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables BUESE RREEEE
& M 3m - - - - 54 31
Reversal of ECL for loan receivebles RUET RHEERER = - = - = 600 = 600
Provision of ECL for other receivables EfbRIGUE EBEEREEE - - - - (45 - (45%) -
Write down of inventories, net GEME 38 (4,683) (5449 = - = - (4,683) (5449)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LENE BRERRECERTE
equipment, net - (205) (218) - - - (218) (205)
Gain on disposa! of subsidiaries HERBREZME - - - - [,563 - 1,563 -
Loss on deregstration of a subsidiary PEEHELA Bl 4 - - - - (10%) ) (0%
(Gain on disposal of interests in associates HERBERE  Eala = - = - = 2480 - 2480
Gain arising from changes in fair value less costs to sel EMTEE AR BREENAEHEL
of biological assets Wi = - = 3 - - - 3
Impairment loss on property, plant ad equipment 1% ~ R REELHEEE (9.682) - = - = - (9,682) -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRREENERE (2,088) - - - - - (2,088) -
Impairment of goodwil EERE - - (140) - - - (740) -
Bark inerest income FAMERA 18 18 - 4 7 18 5 4
Interest expense FISAR (16854  (1173) ) - (13 (8 (1818 (1557
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BRRE 4750 7398 4757 5320 - 385 9,507 13,103
Addition of right-of-use assets TERBELE - - - - - 657 - 657

BMENEERLF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MF+_RA=+t-ALEE

5. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5. BWARKREDE(E)
(b)  Segment assets and liabilities (b) PEEERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by THARAKREEERBEREERTZR
operating and reportable segments: DEED 2D

As at 31 December 2024 R-ZE-WNE+=-A=+-—H

Agricultural

Toys products Total

n&a BEm a5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TER

Reportable segment assets 336,812 4,325 341,137
Unallocated corporate assets 11,743
Total assets 352,880
Reportable segment liabilities A] (426,334) (1,077) (427,411)
Unallocated corporate liabilities & (65,956)
Total liabilities (493,367)

As at 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+=-_A=+—H
Agricultural

Toys products Total

A REM it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET

Reportable segment assets AZRHREE 388926 7477 396,403
Unallocated corporate assets AOBMEEE 17922
Total assets BEHE 414325
Reportable segment liabilities ERNBAER (431323) (825) (432,148)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ~ AABLEBE (63046)
Total liabilities RfARE (495,194)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

5.  REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 5. WARKEIE(E)
()  Geographical information (c) HEESR

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group's revenue and (i) the Group's non-current assets including
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment
properties. The geographical location of customers refers to the
customers’ place of domicile. The geographical locations of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are based on the

physical location of the asset under consideration.

TXEINOHAEER 2 WA+ R()AREEIE
REBEE(BENE  BERRE  £H
EEEREEME )V RHBEBENEE S ZH
e BREZHBNBIREFPZREM - )
¥ BERIEARSHEESE ZMIZM
BEREBEMEREAEZERMESD

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIEEFZBWA FRBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—B-lEF —EFo=F ks —F-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TAETT FET T
Hong Kong BB 5,458 3,405 494 883
The PRC H 18,538 2,110 93,083 114362
United States e 426,265 475,191 = -
Europe BN 39,156 28,447 = -
Korea 2R 21,562 11,708 - -
Australia LV 3,044 1,966 - -
Japan AA 1,885 435 3,699 6,186
515,908 523262 97,276 121,431
(d)  Information about major customers (d FEHFEEFEFZ2EH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing REMBEEXRAANEFBBEETE 0%
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: NEzEPZIWALT :
2024 2023
— kS —F-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE FET
Revenue from manufacturing for BLERHETMA SR Z A
sale of toys segment
Customer A BEPA 419,637 475,191
170 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
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e BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE-B-MET-A=T-HLEE
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES HtpA - Wa@ERER
2024 2023
—ZTgE T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Bank interest income RITHEMA 25 40
Net foreign exchange gain B 5 Weas F 58 2,288 7,088
Mould income EAEA 3,369 1276
Rental income EEALON 189 217
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEWE - BERREL
plant and equipment, net Wees (B518 ) F58 218 (205)
Gain on disposal of interests of associates BB N AR < - 2,480
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary (note /) BUBE R B ARz EE (M) (242) (1,095)
Sundry income (note i) B3l ONC k) 1,460 499
7,307 10,300
Notes: Kz -
0} During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group deregistered a 0 e -_=—F+— ElJiif‘f:’ ' $%

wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC. Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary at
the date of deregistration was approximately HK$1,095,000.

During the year ended 3| December 2024, the Group deregistered
wholly-owned subsidiaries in the PRC. Loss on deregistration of
subsidiaries at the date of deregistration was approximately HK$242,000.

(ii) Sundry income included the interest income from rental deposit HK$36,000

in 2024 (2023: HK$35,000).

(i)

=+— E¢¢f§ ’ Zli%
1B

HERABR -_ZT-_NEFNHAERESHNERA
36,000/ 7C( =T = =4 : 35000/7C) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

(REVERSAL) PROVISION FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES 7. BHRGFEEHE(ED)RE
2024 2023
S 11 —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Reversal of ECL for loan receivables W ER 2 EREEEIRED
(notes 17 and 36(b)) (K1aE17K36(b)) - (600)
Provision (reversal) of ECL for trade FEWE 5708 2 TEEMEEEE
receivables (notes 20 and 36(b)) B (80 (M3E20836(b)) 574 (3273)
Provision of ECL for other receivables H b fEURIE 2 TEEAE BB R 4,558 =
5,132 (3,873)
FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMRAE
2024 2023
—E-MEF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Interest on bank loans RITERZFE 9,931 6,974
Interest on corporate bond EEF L 3,037 3,038
Interest on revolving loans BB 2L 1,910 980
Interest on short-term loans RHERZ A 2,672 3714
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGZHE 208 358
Imputed interest on convertible bonds ARRES 2 HEER S 426 523
18,184 15,587
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEBAX
2024 2023
—EPE —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEMEH
Current year REZ - -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax IR EEPTISH
Current year REE 3,952 4,094
Japan Corporate Income Tax AR ZERSH
Current year REE = 5
3,952 4,099
Deferred tax expense (note 28) RERIER 2 (M/5128) 373 2,264
Income tax expense FRGHiF X 4,325 6,363

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BENBERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to

be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amounts involved arising
from the implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax

is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People's Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The provision for the land appreciation tax (“LAT") is calculated according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.
LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive rates on the appreciation

value, with certain allowable deductions.

The Group is liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
the subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated
from | January 2008. Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The
requirement is effective from | January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% is applied
to the Group as there is a double tax treaty between the PRC and Hong
Kong and the relevant Hong Kong companies should be qualified for the

preferential tax rate based on the prescribed conditions.
Under the law of Japan on Corporate Income Tax, the tax rate of the

Japan subsidiary is 23.2% and 22.4% for 2024 and 2023 respectively.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates of tax

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

e BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_R_WE+-_RA=t+-HLEE

8B (&)

BREMBFESHREGE  GEKCEZE2A
BB TR N8 25% 2 R BMNTIIE - MR

DEEB TR NEIE6.5%2 T EGMTBIIE -
THEMBANERBEEHEERCEEBDEY
N G HE BB R 1 6.5% 2 it — B R B TIE -

RAAREERR BEHMAFGHBEHE
%FEW%%%%ﬁZ AU BRERTE BT T

W E 8 BB FE B IR A ER &
*UWIéB%EfE—D

REBFPEARKMECERSHE(EERF
BOED REEMEBEERGD - FEMER
AR MEFENHREGR25% °

TR EH ([ LB ER ) B EREAREE
MR RBRORBAERE G - LHIBEHD
RIREBEENRERKGEFELRE  BAF
BETHR

EAREEETEREKNLZMBARGR-ET
NFE— A — BB 2 28 H W7 & BR AR
8 ANEBEARLAMENG - REPBRELE
FiigHE » EPBEKZ ZINECERINRIRE
EERRE - BHAR. M@%H%Zﬁﬂmc
%ﬁzngYAE B —BRGERILE

RZBEZ+HF+ZA=1+— az&mﬂﬂom
RPEEEETERE2ESERHLH  mA
BAEBARRBEREEGRIRAERZEESRH
o FABRIEZS%TEMNH R R ERANAER -

BEAACEMSHE L BAHBRFTR
jfm¢&f77_¢mmfﬁjﬁzu
22.4%

FHEERZBIBNIZEBEREERRITH

o

>

/1

=

i o

¢
E'H_
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-ZT-
9.

MET-A=t-BHLFE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

9.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax per

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

FrEHmx% (&)

AEERBMAXERSEERE

FRER AT RS RR AT -

fib 2 T W e 3R

2024 2023
—E_E —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Loss before tax BrARATE 1R 69,437 (22,998)
Notional tax on (loss) profit before tax, LAIE R PAME AT IS RUERE R 2R R B

calculated at the rates applicable to profits in TEZBRBIR (B8 ) &M B &E

the tax jurisdictions concerned (10,110) (673)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERMBAZ BT E

for tax purpose (3,947) (6,133)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax IR L i s -7

purpose 8,637 6,504
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences ~ RIER AN E R ER 2 2

not recognised 1,896 380
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the RATRHE 2 M8 A 72 7] 5K 5

distributable profits of the Company’s 1B5%ETE < TRINT 2 &

subsidiaries in the PRC 409 2,229
Deferred tax effects of LAT THBIRER 2 B E T2 (8) I5
Deferred tax effects of biological assets EMEE I BEER BT E (28) 20
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZBIBBB BB E 9,670 4617
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B A SRR R 2 HIEEE

recognised (2,194) (596)
Income tax expense for the year FEMEBRXZ 4,325 6,363

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF



10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MF+_RA=+t-ALEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

10. FEBE
FRBEEHRGIAIATER

2024 2023
—BCoMmE —E-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Employee benefit expense EEEMNAX(BRESME):

(including directors’ remunerations):

Wages and salaries TERH® 96,774 95,140

Other employee benefits Hitg 8127 3,148 1,348

Contributions to defined contribution TEREHFCR NG 2 K

retirement plans 9,857 9,594

109,779 106,082

Auditors’ remuneration ZERD & 1,000 1,400
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BRARAX 2 FERARGEAEERA)

(included in cost of sales) 495,518 478,136
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1% - BE LR EITE 11,737 I'1,452
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 1,453 1,696
Write down of inventories, net (included in FEMR - FHRGTAHEKRR)

cost of sales) 4,683 5,449
Short-term lease charges in respect of land and 1 RiEF 2 R EAHE S 1)

buildings 351 669
Professional fee (included in other operating EEBAGIAEMLEAR)

expenses) 1,350 5072
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

Il. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS 1. EERFTEEEAESHE
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBRTEZEBEAEMS
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, RIBEZ B R THERISE383(N)IER AR (HEE
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies EENmERRMNFE BB EERE
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information EEBABZAREEFHMET -

about Benefits of directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries, Retirement
allowances and benefit scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind contributions remuneration
e RE RIKEA
e RENER SRR MewE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 TER THER TET TR
2024 —E-NE
Executive directors: HIEE -
Mr. Jiang Qing Hui BEREE (i) - 708 - 708
Mr. Weng Zu Dian SEmEE (iv) - 120 - 120
Mr. Li Zhong Hai TRELE ] - 1,182 - 1,182
- 2,010 - 2,010
Non-executive director: HPTEE -
Mr. Lin Shaopeng molEEsE 120 = = 120
Independent non-executive directors: BV HHTEE -
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho ReERLE (vi) 120 - = 120
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie BT E 120 = = 120
Mr. Zhao Yong BEEE - - - -
Ms. Wang Yu Mei THERT (i 6 - - 6
246 - - 246
Total directors' and chief executive's EERFTEEEAER
emoluments MesE 366 2,010 = 2,376

176 WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MF+_RA=+t-ALEE

1. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS I1l. EERFTEEEAEMES(E)
(Continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) ) ESERIFEEBEAEMS(E)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and benefit scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind contributions remuneration
Fo 28 RIKAEH
fika REDEN TR et
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
it THET TER TAT TET
2023 —E==F
Executive directors: FHITEE -
Mr. Jiang Qing Hu BEBEE (ii) - 482 - 482
Mr. Weng Zu Dian SiEmEAE (iv) - 60 - 60
Dr. Liao Wenjian BXRIEL ) - 714 - 714
Mr. Zhao Deyong Bk EE (v - 435 9 444
- 1,691 9 1,700
Non-executive director: IHITEE :
Mr. Lin Shaopeng molExE 120 1247 50 1417

Independent non-executive directors: B HTEE -

Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho ReESTE (vi) 63 - - 63
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie PaltkrE 138 - - 138
Mr. Ng Wai Hung REEEE (vii) 72 - - 72
Mr. Zhao Yong BEEE 138 - - 138

41 - - 411

Total directors' and chief executives ~EERTEEEAE

emoluments MewsE 531 2,938 59 3528
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their YRR EEI A IR ESEANTIR
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the NEB BRI MY RETMSA -

Company and the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z-_WNE+-A=+—-ALEE

Il. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)
The non-executive director’s emoluments shown above were mainly

for his services as director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown

above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
Notes:

(i) Appointed on 12 April 2024

(ii) Appointed on 12 December 2024

(iif) Appointed on 25 April 2023.

(iv)  Appointed on 29 June 2023.

() Resigned on 28 December 2023.

(vi) Retired on 16 June 2023.

(vii)  Appointed on 23 June 2023 and resigned on 28 February 2025.

(vii)  Retired on 16 June 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no share options that had been

granted to directors.

WINSHINE SCIENCE COMPANY LIMITED
BERNEERAF

1. EERFTEEEAEMES(E)

(a)

EERIEEEABMNS (&)
EXFRERTEE I WS EBRARE
AR TR EHBA AEE R R TR
fit -

EXFIRBYIFAITERT M T BHA
BEEARRESRHEZREMA

et -

(0 RIZTZZMNFMNB+—HERT -
(i) HRZZE-_NF+-_A+-BEZT -
(i) MZZEZ=FMHAZ+HAEZT -
(v), RIZZEZ=FRAZTIBEZEFE -
v) RIZZEZ=F+ZA=+N\BHEE -
(i) RIZTZ=FRNATHEMHE -

(i) RZZZ=FRNAZFT=-BEZHILRN
—ECREZAZTA\REE -

(vily RZZZ=FRNA+BEMF -
HEZ-_NER-_ZF-_=F+-A=

S
T BLEEMEERESTRTREEA
BREXRBREBEAHM LB -

RIE-_NER T -_=ZF+_A=1+—
B BEERTES2ERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(d)

Directors’ retirement benefits
Except for those disclosed above, none of the directors received or

will receive any retirement benefits during the year (2023: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporates and connected entities
with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there are no loan,
quasi-loan and other dealing arrangement in favour of the directors,
or controlled body corporates and connected entities of such
directors (2023: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Company's business to which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year of 2024 or at any time during the year ended 3|
December 2024.

On 16 December 2022, the Company entered into the Convertible
Bonds (the “CB”) Subscription Agreement with the subscriber,
a corporation controlled by the director, Mr. Jiang Qing Hui
("Mr. Jiang”). On 20 April 2023, the completion of the CB
subscription took place and CB in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$14,000,000 were issued to Mr. Jiang. On 24 May 2023, the
CB were converted into 63,636,364 shares. During the year ended
31 December 2023, there are no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Company's business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

e BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_MF+_RA=+t-ALEE

ESRFEEBAEME(E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(d)

(e)

EERHKER

PR EXIEES - FA - MEBEERLIH
HUBBMERAERN (ZF_=F : &) -
ESEBRERN

FR - MESEERIIRSRIERERE
MZFZ=F &) -

RERESERBAE=FXTNRE

BHE_Z-_WF+-_A=T—HLFE -
ARRUERESESREAEMNE=T
XHRE(ZZ=F: &) -

EHLUESE  EHESCZESZERE
EERASRAZER  EERREMR
S 2ER
BHE-_ZT_NEF+-_A=1+—HILFE -
WHENEERABES 2 ZIEHERE &R
EEBAXTAZENR BERRHEAMR
Sk TJF(:%:EE D) o

ESRXRS  REFEHNZERER

HE-S-MET-A=T—BILTE -
AR F LT IR =B SO FRLE R
EABETEZRAAT 2 EHEHEA
AREFEEARENAD HE EAMS
ZERRS  BHRAK o

RZZE-_—_F+_-A+"H, KQFIER
%Aﬂiﬂ%h%%”ﬂ@h%%”w%
W ZRBAREFEERLA([EL
EDEHEEE - RZTZ=FMNA=+
H A#RREFSREFETK  BXeH

14,000,000/ TH AT MR EH B BT T
Bht R-TE-=FRA=-1+WA -7
B EH R B63,6363648% A% &
ET=FFZA=1T—HLFE K
UNGIRIZ VRN S ke SR s L R
ZHEARRRZEBEHEERRAERTEE
NEBEREFEAEE ARG 